REGD. OFF. & WORKS : 9th K.M. STONE, HISAR-BHIWANI ROAD, V.P.0. DABRA (HISAR)-125005
' TEL{FAX : 91-1662-260397, Mob. : 98120-22682
CIN : L17112HR1892 PLC031621, E-mail : hsml2000@reditfmail.com

Dated: October 03, 2016

Dept. of Corporate Services

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Registered Office: Floor 25.

P J Towers, Dalal street

Mumbai 400001

Sub: Compliance of Clause 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - (SCRIP CODE 521068).

Dear Sir,

Pleasc find enclosed a copy of annual report of the company for the year ended March
31, 2016 for your reference and records.

We request you to display the above on the notice board of the Exchange for the
information of all the stakeholders.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully

o

Authoriscd Signatory

CHD. OFF. : 707, INDUSTRIAL AREA, PHASE.l, CHANDIGARH. TEL | FAX : 91-172-2659754
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" 7. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify change in their address, if any, to their

. . ] .
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ‘ . |

NOTICE
Notice is heraby given thal the Tvlventy Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Sharehoiders of the company will
be held on Friday, the 30™ day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs. at the Registered Office.of the Company at g™, -
KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road. VPO Dabra, Hisar 1o transact the following business- .

ORDINARY BUSINESS '

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance sheet as al March 31, 2016 and the Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of Auditors' and Directors' thareon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Sapna Kansal, DIN 06892410 who retires by rotation and is efigible for
reappointment.

-

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or withoul modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:- '

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
Companies Act. 2013, the appointment of M/s Jain & Anil Sood, Chantered Accountants, Chandigarh, the retiring
auditors of the Company, be and is hereby ralified |6 enable them to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual Ganeral Meeting required to be held for the financial
year 2016-2017, at a remuneralion to be decided by the Board of Directors.” '

For and on behatf of the Board

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 05.09.2016 ' (Gopal Krishan Gupta )
Regd. Office: : Managing Oireclor
9™, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwanl Road, VPO Dabra. Hisar

NOTES:: - 3

1. A member enlitied lo aitend and vote at the Annual Ganeral Meeting is entitled 1o appoint a proxy lo altend”
and vote instead of himsalf and a proxy need not be a gnember of the company. 5 :

P

I

P 4 S

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of Members and Share
Transter Books of the Company shall remain closed from 26" day of Sehtember, 2016 to 30" day of September,
2016 (both days inclusiva), '

3. The instrumenl of proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited al the regisierad office of the company,
duly completad and signed, not less than 48 hours befora the commencemenl of the mesting. Proxies submitted

on behalf of Limited Companies or societies alc. must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as
applicable.

LT i i

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meating, the i8int holder who is higher in order of names under a given
Folio/DPID-Client {in respect of dematerialized shares) will be entitled 10 vote.

5. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of this Notice along with dulty filled admission slip for
attending the meeting.

gl — -

v

6. Members holding shares in physical form are requested Lo notify change in address, if any, to the Company at
its Registered Office or to the Registrar & Transfer Agents-M/s Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, .
New Dethi-110015. @ ¥

-

Depository Participant.

1 .
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A e |- Enter.tha. Date of Birth as recorded in_your demat account of in the company

ottt

8. Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 red with the Rules framed there under, the company may
-send notice of general meeting and other documents through electronic mode. Further, pursuanl lo the first
proviso to the Rule 18 of the Companiese{Management and Administration) Rule, 2014, the Company shall
provide an advance opportunity at least once in a financial year lo the members to register their e-mail address.

-~ -andld!angesu!herein.-fIn.view-of-the‘sama.-membe‘rs-are--requasled-lo-kindiy-updal_e-lheir»p-mqil-address-with

depository participants in case of holding shares in demat form. If holding shares in physical form, Members are

 requested to inform their e-mail 1D to the company.

9. Electronic copy of the Notice of general meeting of the company is being sent lé:rall the members whose email ‘
Ids are registered with the company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes. For members who
have not registered their email address, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. .

10. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies [Managerpefn and
Administfation) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, the.Company is
pleased lo offer e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes alectronically on all resolutions set forth in the
Notice convening Annual General Meeting to be heid on Friday, the 30™ day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs.
at the registered office of the companat 9%, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar. :
The Company has engaged the services of CDSL to provide the e-voling facility.

11. The instructicns for memb@ for E-Voting are as under: : ’ . t
.

< {i) The valing period begina on Tuesday, the 27" day of September, 2018 al 9.00 AM. and ends on Thursday,

the 29" Hay of Seplember, 2016 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders” of the Company, holding shares
aither in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cul-off date (record dale) of Friday, the 23™ day of
September, 2016, may cast their vote elactronically. The e-voling module shall be disabled by COSL for voling
thereattar. )
(i) The sharsholders should log on to the e-voling website www.evolingindia.com.
(iii) Click on Shareholders.
{iv) Now Enter your User D . o

(a) For CDSL: 16 digils beneficiary |0,

(b} For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Clienl 1D,

(¢} Members helding shares in Physical Form should enter Folic Number registered with lhe Company. -
{v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. - -1
(vi) If you are holdirg; shares in demal form and had logged on to www evotingindia.com and valed on an earlier

- voting of anytompany, then your existing password is to be used. -

{vii) If you are a first lime user follow the steps given balow:
- | For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numerc "PAN issued by Income Tax Department
-(Applicabla for both demat sharshokders as weil as physical shareholders)
- . » . » Members who have not updated Lheir PAN with lhe Company/Depository

Parlicipant are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on
Attandance Slip indicated In the PAN field.

DeB

records for the sad demat account or folio in dd/mmiyyyy format.

Dividend Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details a3 recorded in your demat account or in the |’

company records for the said demal account or folio. _

+ Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the |
details are not recerded wilth the depository or company please enter the

mambaer id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
instruction (iv).

*(villj"Alier entering these detaits-appropriatety, click on“SUBMIT" tab.
{ix}) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
Members holding shares in demat lorm will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to

2
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rﬁandato"ily‘enler their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended nol 1o share your
password with any other person and lake utmost care to keep your password confidential.
{x) For Members hoiding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolulions
contained in this Notice. :
(i) Click on the EVSN for the relevanl Company, i.e. Hisar Spinning Mills Llrnuted en which you cheose to vole.
{xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option *YESINO"™
for voling. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies thal you dissent to the Resolution.
{xiii} Chick on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK if you wish to view the enlire Resolution details.
(xuv} After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. Il you wish to confirm your vote, click on *OK", else to change your vote, click on *CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.
{xv) Cnce you “CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to rnodlfy your vote.
{xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on *Click here to print” option on the Voting
page. : :
{xvii) If Demat account hoider has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and Ihe image
verification code and click on Forgol Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xvm) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

= Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to

log on to www evolinaindia.com and regisler themseives as Corporates.
= A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the enlity should be emailed to
helpdesk_ evoting@ecdslindia.com,
o After receiving the login delails a compliance user should be crealed using the admin login and
password, The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on,
« The list of accounts should be mailed io helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accounts they would be able to cast their vole.
+ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attormey (POA) whnch they have issued in favour
" of the Custedian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the syslem for the scrutinizer to verify the
. same.
{xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions (“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdstindia.com. '
{xx) Since, the Company is required lo provide the members facility o exercise their vote by electronic means,
shareholders of the company, holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized form as on the cut off date
i.e. Friday, the 23™ day of September, 2016 and nol casting their vote eleclronically, may also cast their vote at
the Annual General Meeting. .

{xxi) The members who have casl their vole by e-voling prior to the Annual General meeting, may also attend
the meeting but shall not be entitled io casl their vote again, _

(xxif) Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Company Secretary in practice, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer lo scrutinize
the e-voling process in a fair & transparent manner,

{xxiii) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voling at the annual general meeting, first count
the voies cast at the meeting, thereafier, unblock the voles cast through remote e-voting in the presence of
atleast 2 witnesses not in employment of the Company and make, not later than 3 days from the conclusion of
the meeting, a Consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total voles cast in favour or against, if any, o the
Chairman, who shall countersign the same.

3
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Form no. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Secllon 105(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companles {Management and-
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN ' : L17112HR1992PLC031621
Name of the Company : Hnsar Spinning Mills Limited -
Registered office : 9™, . KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO, Dabra. Hisar
I/ We, being the member (s)of ................ Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
Name:
Address:
Email 1D;
Signalure: ..., or failing him
Name:
Address:
Email iD:
Signature: ..., or failing him
Name:
Address: '
Ermnail 1D
Signature.........cccovviieiii e

as my/ our proxy {o attend and vote {on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ cur behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 30" day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs. at 9™ KM Stone, Hisar
Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar and al any adjournment thereof in respect of such resoiullons as are indicated
below:

S.NO. RESOLUTIOVS

I \Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, chorts of the Board of Directors and
Auditors

2 Re-appointment of Ms. Sapna Kansal, DIN 068924 10, retiring by rotation

3 Ranﬁcanon of appointmenl of Audllors and fix their remuneration

Signed thi§".......... day of September; 2016
Signature of Shareholder:
Signature of Proxy Holder (s): . ) ,

Note: This form of proxy in order io be eflective should be duly completed and deposited at the regisiered office
of the Campany, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

“ )




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED %

: St ‘HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Registered Office: 9", KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani
. Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005 -
Tel: 01662-260397, Tel/Fax:-91-1662-260397
E-mail; hsmI2000@rediffmail.com
Website: www.hisarspinningmills.com
CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621

Allendance Slip for 24" Annual General Meeting
} . (to be handed over at the Registration Counter)

IWe hereby record myfour presence at the 24" Annual General Meeting of the company at 9™, KM Stone, Hisar
-Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra. Hisar on 30™ day of September, 2016 al 12:00 Hrs.
- " Signature of the Member/Proxy present
Nate: The practice of distributing copies of the Annuai’Report at the Annual General Meeling has been

r. dJscommued Hence, persans atlending the Meeting are requesled to bring thetr copies of the Annual Report
with them.

5 PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTANDACE SLIP AT THE MEETING.

Registered Office: 9%, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani
Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005

Tel: 01662-260397, TelFex:-91-1662-260397

: . Website: www.hisarspinningmilts.com

( . . . CIN: L171 12HR1992PLC031621

Dear Sir, -

Pursuani fo provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ruls 20 of the Companies
. (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014 as amended by tha Companias (Management and Administration)
- Amendment Rules,- 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the company is pleased to provide remote a-voling facility to the members to cast their votes
electronically on all the resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 24™ Annual General Meeting to be held
on Friday, 30™ day of Seplember, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs. The company has engaged the Central Depository
Services Limited {CDSL) to provide the remote e-voting facility:

/ Your electronic voling particutars are set out below:

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN ; User ID ) Password
{Electronic Voting Event . .
Number)’

160805004

4 The remote e-voling facility will be ava:lable dunng the voung period as mdlcate herain’ below

Cmnmncm&ont of rtrnote c-vobng period End of mmots e-voting period

From 9.00 AM. IST on Tuesday, 27 Seplember, 2016 | Till 5.00 P.M. IST on Thursday, 29" September, 2016
5 -
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Notes: '
1. Please read the instructions printed- overleaf before exercising your vole. ‘o
2. These details and instructions form an integral pan of the Nohce for the 24™ Annua! General Meeting to be
held on 30" day of September, 2016.

3. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to lhe paid up value of their shares in the equity share

capital of the Company as on cut-off date of Tuesday, 23 September, 2016, being the record date for the
purpose of voting.




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED _ )
Director's Report

el

.

Dear Shareholders, -

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 24™ Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts of the Company for Lhe financial year encled 31sl March, 2018,

Financial Highlights . Yoarended  Year ended
: 31.3.2016 31.3.2015
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
. Sales & other income 2399.28 2404.79
- Profit bafore Inlerest & Deprecialion 346.72 265.88
Less : Intarest 46.83 ! 28.31
Profit’{Loss) before Depreciation : 200.8¢ 237.57
‘ ] Less : Depreciation. 23063 134.53
1l Profil before exceptional items and before Tax 69.26 r . 103.04
! Add: Exceptional llems . 17.60. -
Profit/ {Loss) before Tax 85.86 103.04
Less : Provision for Taxation - Current Tax 17.14 ' 46.06
- MAT Credit ' . i i
-Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) 10.19 (21.89)
-MAT Credil earlier year - -
-Tax for earlier years . -. -
. Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax ‘ . S58.53 ] 78.87
N Add : Surpius broughl from previous year 178.91 100.04
! Total Surplus 238.44 - 178.91
: Appropriations : . . | '
‘- Proposed Dividend = - o NIL NIL’
r Corporate Dividend Tax _ NIL NIL
' Surplus Camied to Balance Sheet 238.44 - 178.91
{- ' 238.44 178.91

OPERATIONAL & PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Ouring the year under review, the gross receipts of your Company were Rs. 2399.28 lacs as against gross
receipts of Rs. 2404.79 lacs during the previous year showing 8 minor decrease in total receipts and profit (after
tax) was Rs. 59.53 lacs for the year as against net profit {(after tax) of Rs.78.87 lacs during previous year showing
a decline of 24.52%. The Company has made a major technological up gradation of machines in the last financial
year and its benefits shall accrue in the years to come. The directors are oplimistic about future performance of
‘the Company, . .

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
During the year ended 31* March, 2018, the Company did not have any subsidiary company.

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepled or renewed any deposit from the public during the year under review pursuant to
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and niles made thersunder.

7
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DIVIDEND

With a view (o conserve resourcas of the company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year. -
under revigw,

APPOINTMENT OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS (KMPs) AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to provisions of section 152 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, Mrs. Sapna Kansal, DIN 08832410 shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer herself for re-appointment Mr. TN Goet, DIN 00193103 and Mr. Ra;esh Gupta, DIN 00193052, were
appointed as Independent Directors for a period of five consecutive years in the Annual General Meeting
held on 29™ September 2015 in terms of provisions of section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other

applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 & Companies (Appomlment and Qualifi cauon of Directors)
Rules 2014, -

As on 31" March 2016, following are Key Managerial Personnel of Company:

+ Mr. Gopal Krishan Gupta " Managing Director

«  Mr. Anurag Gupta Executive Director

» Shri Sharad Goel Chief Financial Officar
s Mrs. Tanu Sharma Company Secretary

In accordance with {he provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and Arlicles of Association of the Company Mrs.
Sapna Kansal, DIN 06892410 shall retire by rotation at the forthcomnng Annual General Meeting and is eligible for
re-appointment.

Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193103, ceased lo be the direclor of the company consequent upon his sudden & -
untimely death on 04™ July, 2018. Your directors applauded contribulion made by him during his association with
the company. Your directors expressed their sympathy for the bereaved family and wished peace for the

departed soul,

STATUTORY AUCITORS

At the 23™ Annual General Meeting of Company held on 29™ September 2015, Mis Jain & Anil Sood,
Chartered Accountants, were fe-appointed as Statulory Auditors of the Company, for a period_of two years
i.e. from the conclusion of 23™ Annual General Meeting of Company till the conclusion of 25™ Annual.
General Meeting of Company; subject to the ratification of their appointment by the members in

subsequenl Annual General Meeling in accordance with the provisions of section 139 of Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014.

In pursuance to the same, the Company has obtained a Letter of Eligibility in terms of provisions of saction
139 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies {Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 from M/s Jain & Anil Sood,
Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their re-appointment, if ratified in the ensuing AGM would be in
accordance with the provisions of section 141 of Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under and that
they are not disqualified for such appointment under Companies Act, 2013, the Chartered Accountants Act
1949 and rules & regulations made there under. Accordingly, the appointment of M/s Jain & Anil Sood,
Chartered Accountanis, as Statulory Auditors of the Company, is placed for ratification by the shareholders
The said appoiniment has alsa been approved by Audit Committee.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

Observations, if any. made in the Audilor's Report are self explanatory and do not call any explanation.
- "..!’ .

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed by the Board to conduct Secretarial
Audit under provisions of section 204 of the Companies Acl 2013. The Secretarial Audit report is annaxed with

8




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED .. e &@ _
the Director's Report as Annexure — 1. There is no quaiiﬁi:élion in secretarial audit report.

i

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
ouTGO

Energy conservation conlinues to be an area of major emphasis in your Company. Efforts are made to opllrnizeﬂ
the energy cost while carrying out manufacturing operations. As required by the provisions ol section 134 of. the -
Companies Act, 2013, the relevant information regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorphon and )
Foreign Exchsnga Eamings and Outgo is given in the Annexure- 2 forming part of th:s report. . -

STATUTORY DlSCLOSURES

None of the Directors of the Compeny are disqualified under the provisions of section 184 of the Compames Acl

2013. The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies Act 2013’and’ SEBI
- {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requuremen!s) Regulahons 2015 (“hereinafier referred to as Listing =~ "

. Regulations™),

l CORPORATE GOVERNANCE _ -

The Company is commitied to maintain the good standards of Corporate Govemance The Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance requirements as stipulated under Listing Reguiations. Pursuant to
said Regulations, Report on Corporate Govemance logether with the Certificate issued by Practicing .
Company Secretary regarding compliance of Corporate Governanca is annexed to this report.

9 DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of saction 134(3){c} of the Companies Act, 2013, i is hereby confired that:

{a) in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018, the appllcable
accounting standards have baen followed and that there are no material departures,;

{b} the Directors have seilected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and macle.
judgements and eslimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as al 31s1 March, 2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year

“ended on that date;

{c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the

). Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other imegularities; ‘

{d} the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis;

{e) . the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such

: internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

“: (f} . the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with lhe provisions of all app{mble

[' laws and that such systems are adequately and operating eflectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of extract of the Annual Return is given in Form MGT-9 in Annexure - 3.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS . -
Dunng the financial | year 2015-18, six Board meetings were hald The meetings wera held on 15" April, 2015,
30™ May, 2015, 13 August, 2015, 04™ September, 2015, 13™ November, 2015 and 15" February, 2016. The,
other relavant details of Board meetings and the attendance of the Directors elc. is given under Corporate
Govamance Report annexed with Director's Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS : . -

All Independent Directors of the Company have submitied the Declaration of Independence. as required pursuant -,
to section 149(7) of the Companies Acl 2013 and under Listing Regulations, stating that they meel the crileria of
independence as provided in sub-section (5).

J . , 9 . .




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ) I_l @
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 '

No loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been given by thé
Company. ) . o :

RELATED PARTY TRANSCATIONS R

o d
All ralated party transactions that were antered into during the financial year were in the ordinary course of

business ang were.at.arm’s length basis... No Matedally, significant refated, party_transactions.have_been entered.

by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. that had potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also
the Board for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on yeardy basis for the
transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The detail of transactions enlered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted is placed before the Audit Committee ‘and the Board of Directors on a quarterty
basis. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the company.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in ling with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassmenl of Women at the- Workplace {Prevention, Prohibilion, & Redressal} Act, 2013. Internal Complaints,
Commitlee (ICC} has been sal up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
{permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. . The said policy is uploaded on the
Company's wabsite www. hisarspinningmills.com. -

The lollowing is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2015-16

a) No. of compiaints received: Nil
b) No. of complainis disposed off. Nil

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred betwean the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the

date_ol the report,other than th isclosed in the financial stateme .
T= io? s —— e
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY - a3

Risk managemenl is a continuous process across the organization designed to identify, assess and frame a
responsa (o threals that affect the achievement of its objectives. |t enablés management to prepare for risks
before they devolve to_improve the _operational affectiveness‘__Dalq_ngiggyop of the risk appetite allows
management-ic-deploy résources ‘according”to"thé eed. The Company firm s that to ensure effective
risk management, there ought to be risk management plans to handle the risks based on the prioritles and
challenges of the business. The factors involved in identified risks must be considerad and the accuracy of
assessment is very important. This implies, if proper risk management is implemented as a best practice then
massive capital losses can be prevented. The success of_the Risk Managemant Framework depends on the

efforts.takemlo. mitigate/-reduce. eithar-the.probability-or.consequence. of.the.risk/-threa.. Therefore.considering.

the same, Company’s Risk Management Policy includes three key elements:

. Risk Assessment
fl.  Risk Management and Risk Mitigation
"IN, Risk Monitoring

Risks are analyzed, considerifg likelihood and impact, as a basis for determining how thay shoutd'be-r}\anaged

effectively. Adhering the same, Company has constituted Risk Management Committee and adopted an effective”
Risk Management Policy in its place to assess,-mitigate and-to monilor the different risks. exposed.to the industry

in which it operates. Risk managemant policy of the company is available at company's website
www.higarspinningmills.com. ey
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POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT & REMUNERAT.ON AND QTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee constituled by the Company funclions in accordance with the
terms of reference as set out under provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreemant read with provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Acl, 2013 & rules made thereunder. Apart from other Corporate Polices which are
mandalory under Companies Act as well as under Listing Agreement, the said Committee has aiso formutated
and recommended to the Board a Nomination & Remuneration Policy relating 1o director's appointment and
remuneration including criterda for delermining qualifications, posilive altributes, independence of a director and
all other matters as slipulaled under the provisions of section 178 of Companies Act 2013.

T

‘The policy also relates to remuneration of Director’s, KMP's and olher employees of the Company. The said
policy is given in Annexure-4.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY
: Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Internal Control system commensurate with its size and
= complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance thal transaclions are
executed with Management authorization and that they are recorded in all material respects to permil preparation
of financial statements in conformity with eslablished accounting principles and that the assets of your Company
g are adequately safeguarded against significanl misuse or koss. ,

During the year under review, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations lo
improve the internal financial control environment. Their scope of work inter-alia includes review of operalional
efliciency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the inlarnal control strengths in all areas. In
addition to statutory audit, the financial controls of the Company at various locations are reviawsd by the Interal
Auditors, who report Lheir findings to Lhe Audit Commitiee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively raviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and suggests further strengthening the same, wherever
required. )

3 -. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year under review, thers is no material order(s) passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal
- impacting the going concern stalus and company's operation in future.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE) RULES 2014

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2016 was Rs. 3,73,50,000/- comprising
of 37,35,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. As required under Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules
2014, during the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential volting rights,
sweat oquily shares, preference shares and employee stock oplions and also not made any provision for
purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees, _

Y

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES

o During the year under review, therg is NIL disclosure as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies
y Act 2013,

Audit Committee constituted by the Compeany funclions in accordance with the terms of reference as sel out
- under.the.provisions of Clause 49 of Lisling Agreement read with provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act,
2013 & rules made lhereunder and additional responsibiliies assigned to 'it by Board of Diractors of the
Company. The Commitiee reviews the internal. audit reports ard firdlings of internal auditors along with the
comments of management. The funclions of the Audit Committée among others include approving and
}{ implementing . the audit procedures. effective supervision of fNnancial reporting system, Whistie Blower
Mechenism, internal control and procedures, recommending appoiniment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to
L Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatory guidetines, The Board has constituted tha Audit Committee
f " comprises of following: . . ' :

k AUDIT COMMITTEE o

.

-

S.NO. | NAME ~ - - DESIGNATION

: 1 Sh. Rajesh Kumar Gupta, Non-exaculive and Indapendent Director Chairman
: 2 Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director Member
3 Sh, Vikas Gupla, Non-executive end Independent Director Member
11
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The other relevant delails of Audit Committee are’ given under Corporate Governance Report annexed with
Director's Repont.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has & vigil mechanism' named “Whistie Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism™ lo deal with instance of

fraud and mismanagement, if any. The detail of the Policy is explained in the Corporate Govemnance Report and
also available at company's website www. hisarspinningmills.com.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION QF BCARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well”
as that of its committees, individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board in compliance with the
Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation
process covering various aspecis of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board. its committee &
members, their experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, govemance and also in
accordance with Pedormance Evaluation Policy of Company. Broadly the performance of Non-
Independant/Executive/Whale Time Director(s) was evaluated on the basis of their own performance, expertisa,
intelfigénce, their qualilative & quantilative contribution towards operational achievements, organizational
performance etc. The performance of Non-Executive Independent Diraclors were evaluaeted on the basis of their
constructive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their informed & balanced decision-making,
ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The performance evaluation of various
Board Committees conslituted under Companies Act & Listing Agreement was made on the basis of their
respactive terms of reference, discharge of funclions, governance elc. )

Disclosure of information's as required under rule 5{1} of Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Provisions of Rule 5{2} & (3) of the Companies (Appointmeni & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) .

Rules, 2014 requiring parliculars of the employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs per year to
be disclosed in the Repon of Board of Direclors are not applicable lo the Company as nane of the employaas
was in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs during the financial year 2015-16.

-

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 187(12) of the Companies
Act,” 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annexure forming part of the Annual Report. Having regard to the provisions of
Section 136(1) read with its relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report excluding the
aforesaid Information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for
inspection al the Regisiered Office of the Company during working hours and any member interesled in
obtaining such information may write lo the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished lree of cost.

The Nominatien and Remuneration Committeé of the Corﬁpany has affirmed that the remuneration is 8s per the
remunaration policy of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS1S REPORT

Management discussion and analysis report, as required by Listing Regulations, forms part of the Annual
Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT .

Your Directors-wish to convey their-appreciation to-all of the Company's employees for their enormous efforts as
well as their colleclive contribution to the Company's performiance. The Directors would also like to thank
shareholdars, customers, dealers, suppliers, Financial Institulions, bankers, Govenment and all the other
business associates for the conlinuous support given by them to the Company and their confidence in its
management. ’ ' '

By order of the Board of Directors

P
. Sdi- : Sd/-
Place: Chandigarh (Anurag Gupta) {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 Exocutive Director Managing Director
DIN-00192888 DIN-00182985
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rporat vemance Re
1. Company's philosophy on cods of Govemance o

Corporate Govemnance is a set of system, process and principlas which ensure that a Company is governed in
the best interest of all stakeholders. The cbjective -of Good Corporate Govemnance is to ensure the Board's
commitmenl towards transparent managemant to maximize long term value for the Company's shareholders of
all stakeholders. We believe that good Corporate Govemance emerges from the application of the best and
sound management practices and compliance with the laws coupled with adherence 1o the highest standards of
transparancy and business ethics. .

2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Execulive and Non-Executive Directors
80 as to have a balanced structura. As on 31* March 2018, the Board of Directors consists of six Directors, out of
which two are Promoter Directors (Managing Director and executive Director), one Non - Executive Woman
Director and three are Independent Non-Executive Directors. None of the Directors on the board is a member on
more than 10 committees and Chairman of more than 5 commiltees as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requiraments) Regulations 2015 (“hereinafter referred to as Lisling Regulations®), across all the
companies in which they are Directors. The necessary disclosures regarding commitiee memberships hava bean
made by all the Directors, Tha Non-Exacutive Independent Directors fulfill.the conditions of independance
specified in Section 149 of Companies Act 2013 and rules mada there under and meet with requirements of
Listing Regulations.

During the financial year 2015-18, six Board meetings were held, The maetings were held on 15" April, 2015,
30" May, 2015, 13™ August, 2015, 04™ September, 2015, 13" November,~2015 and 15™ February, 2016. As
stipulated by Code of Independant Directors under Comganies Act 2013”and under Listing Regulations, a
separate meeting of independent directars was hald on 15 February, 2018 to review the performance of Non-
Independent directors including the Chairman and the Boards as a whole, The Independent Directors siso
reviewed he quality, contenl and timeliness of follow of information between Management and the Board. All
Independent Diractors were prasent in the said meating.

The names and categories of Directors on the board, their attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at
the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships/ Committee memberships/ Chairmanship
held by them in other Companies are given below:

o

No. of Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03.2016;-
Name of . Director | Category Attendance - |- Nao.of No. of Membership/ Chalrma’nslﬂp in
. . » Particulars Directorshi Committeaes +
0 P
Board |[LastAGM| Other |Membershi|[Chaimnanship| Total
Meeting Directorshi p
p -
Sh. Gopal Krishan MD 5 Yos 1 1 Nil 1
Gupta . 8 .
Sh. TN Gosl INED 5 Yeos .4 CONil Nil Nil
Smt. Sapna NED 5 Yes Nil Nil 1 1
Kansal* :
$h. Anurag Gupta ED 5 | Yes | Wi 1 - Nil
Sh, Vikas Gupla INED 5 No ~ Nl 2 Nil 2
Sh. Rajesh Gupla | INED 5 Yes * Nil NIt - 1

INED : Independent Non Executive Director
NED : Non Executive Direclor

MD : Managing Director (Exacutive)

ED : Executive Director
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+ :The commiltees considered for the above purpose are Audit Committes and Stakehokders Relanonshup

Commitiee. . . ‘.
3 INFORMATION S_UPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access l?all information about the Company. All the meelings are conducted as per well
designed and structured agenda, All the agenda items are backed by necessary supporting information including
minimum’ information as stipulated under Regulation 17(7) of Listing Regulations to the extent it is applicable &
relevant gnd documants 1o enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of tha
meetings  of 81'th” Board Commniaess for IhS iRIGrmalaA6! BSard, The Board Taviews (H8" dEcIAratons/ieports”
made by the Management regarding compliance with applicable laws on gquarterly basis as well as steps taken by
tha Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. Post meetings, all important decisions taken at the
meating are communicaled to the concerned officials and departments.

4, .MAXEMUM DIRECTORSHIP & TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS | -

The maximum tenure of Indepandent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act 2013. The Company has- -
issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors. At the time of appoiniment of an
independent direclor, it was ensured that the number of Boards on which such independent direclor serves is B
restricted to seven listed companies as an independent diractor and three listed companies as an indepaendent

direclor in case such person is serving as a whola-time (execulive) director of a listed company, Tha terms &
condilions of appointment of independent directors are available on Company's website viz.

www.hisarspinningmills.com, S

5. Code of Conduct

The Company is committed lo conduct its business in accordance with'the pertinent laws, rules and regulations
and with the highest standards of business ethics. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on Company's wabsita viz,
www,hisarspinningmills.com. All Board membars and Senior Management Parsonnel have aflimed compliance

- with the Code. A declaration signed by Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, DIN 00182985, Manegmg Director of the
Company lo this effect is enclosed at the end of this repont.

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE

As par SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for I'
Prevention of Insider Trading. The Code is applicabla to Promoters and Promoter's Group, all Directors, KMP's

and such Designated Employaes etc. who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive *
information relating to Company, Tha Code lays down guidelines advising them on procaedures to be followed and o
disclosures lo be made while dealing with thé shares.of Company and caulioning them aboui the consequences

of violations. The Company Secrelary is responsible for implementation of this code. During the year under

review, there has been due compliance with the said code. The Company has also formulated a Code of -
Praclnces and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sansitive Information in accordance with SEBI
{(Pfohibition of Insider Trading) Regulallons 2015. The same is also posled on Company's website l
viz. wwaw. hisarspinningmills.com,

sty
7. CEO and CFQ Certification
As par Regulation 17 of Listing Regutations, Sh. Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) & Sh. Gopal Krishan l
Gupta, DIN 00192985, Managing Director (CEQ) of the Company have issued. cerlificate pursuant to the .
provisions of Listing Regulations certifying that the financial stalemenls and the cash flow statament do not ]

contain any materially untrue statement and these ;tatements represent a true and fair view of the Company's
afiairs. The said cenificate is attached harewith and forms parl of the Annual Report.

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD ' 1

.-The.Board.ol.Directors have constituled various Board Committees in compliancé of Companies Act as well as,
Listing Regulationsi/Listing Agreement to deal with specific areas and aclivities as slipulated under. the

Companies Act and Listing Obligations. The Board' Commitlees meeal al reguiar intervals, takes nacassary steps | T
to parform its duties/functions entrusted by the Board, : *'_’)-; :

14 T : i 2
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{A) Audit Committee

Audit Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under Listing Regqulations read
with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there under and sadditional

" responsibilities assigned lo it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee reviews the internal audit

reports and findings of internal auditors along with the comments of management. The functions of the Audit
Commitiee among others, include approving and implementing the audit procedures, effective supervision of
financial reposting- system, Whistle Blower Mechanism, internal control and' procedures, recommending
appointment of Statutory Audilors, Cost Auditors lo Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatory
guidelines. The composition, names of members, chairperson, particulars of the meetings and attendance of the
members during the {inancial year are as below:

During the financial year 2015-16, Four Audlt Committee meetings were held on May 30, 2015, August 13, 2015,
Novermnber 13, 2015 and Fabruary 15, 2016,

SNO. | NAME ‘ DESIGNATION | NO. OF

MEETINGS
ATTENDED
DURING THE
YEAR 2015-
) 2016
1 Sh Rajesh Kumar Gupla, Non-executive and Independent | Chairman 4
Director
2 Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupia, Managing Director Member 4 o
3 Sh, Vikas Gupla, Non-axecutive and Independent Director Mamber |4
[i¥0e

The Managing Director élong with the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors were invitees 1o the
meetings. The Company Secretary acts as secrelary to (he Audil Commitlee.

-~

(B). Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee functions in accordance with the terms 'of reference as set out
under Listing Regulations read with provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 & rulas made there under.

The iunctions of Nomination and Remuneratlion Committee include formulation of criteria for delermining
qualifications, positive atlribvles and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a
policy relating to remuneration of direclors, key managerial personnel and other employess. formulation of
criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors, devising a policy on
diversity of board of directors, identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be .
appeinted in senior management in accordance with critena laid down and recommend to the board of directors o
th-eir appointment and removal etc. During the financial year 2015-2016, one meeling of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was hekd on May 30, 2015 .

1

S.NO. | NAME DESIGNATION | NO. OF MEETINGS
ATTENDED DURING
THE YEAR 2015-2016
1 Sh., T N Goel. Non-executive and Independent |.Chairman 1
Director '
2 Sh. Vikas Gupla, Non-executive and Independent | Member . 1
Director
3 Ms. Sapna Kansal Non-executive Direcior Member 1 9

Remuneration Policy

The objeclive of this Policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward
and retain talent, The Company has adopted and implemented the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the requireament of the Committee to recommend to the Board a policy. relating to tha remuneration
for the directors, KMPs and other employees.

15
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1) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

No remuneration was paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the year 2015-16.

iy Remunaration of Executive Directors

The detaits of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year 2015-16 are given below:

. {inRs.}
Name of Directors., — |._Salarys' — [ Perquisites’ _ |- Commilssion : |3 so:ocTolalert - o of) |
Sh. Anwag Gupta,| 380000 - - - ~ 360000 R
Director . o s

Thera is no Employee Stock Option Schame {ESOP} in the Company as on 31" March 20186, Further, there are
no pecuniary relaionships or transactions of Non-Exacutive Director vis-a vis the Comgpany which has potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. . .

{C). Stakeholders Retationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committes functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under
provisions of Listing Regutations read with provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made
thereunder i.e. redressing of Shareholders/investors complaints, regarding to share transfers, non-receipt of
balance - sheat/dividend - by- the- shareholders elc. During the financial year 2015-16, four Stakeholders ;
Relationship Committee meetings were held on May 30, 2015, August 13, 2015, November 13, 2015and
February 15, 2016. The composition, names of the members, chairperson, particulars of the meetings and
attendance of the members during the year are as below: -

2 Sh. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director Member

Sh. Vikas Gupla, Non-executive and|Member -
3 Independant Director

During the financial year, the request for transferdematiremat of shares, change of address eic have baen duly
effactad. During the year, no cofmplaint from any shareholder.was received. Hence no grievance was pending at
the end of the . financial. year._Ms. Tanu Shama.is the Compliance Officer of the Company for SEBY Stock
Exchange/ROC relaled issues elc. Dt

{D). Risk Managemeant Commities:

The Risk Management Committee was discontinued during the year as Listing Regulations in this respect are not
applicable to the company. : .

9. Ganeral Body Meetings -

Tha last three Annual Genaral Meatings of the Company were held as under ;-

YEAR : _ VENUE ) DATE | ~TIME DETAILS OF SPECIAL
RESOLUTION
2012-13 9™ KM. Stone; Hisar Bhiwani road.| 30/08/2013 | 11.00 AM. " NI
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)
2013-14 9" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiweni-road;]—29/09/2014 | 11.00 AM. -Nil
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)
2014-15 0" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road,| 29/09/2015 | 11.00AM. Nil
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YEAR VENUE . DATE TIME DETAILS OF SPECIAL
' s RESQLUTION

V.P.QO Dabra {Hisar)

No Postal ballots were used for voting in these meetings. Al the forthcoming AGM, there is no item on the agenda

_ that needs approval by Postal ballots.

10. Subsidiary Company

a
During the year ended 31 March, 2016, neither the Company has any subs:daary nor any malerial listed/unlisted
subsidiary company.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company’s Risk Management Policy is available at company’s websile www.hisarspinningmil!s.com.

12, Disclosures

a) Related Parly Transactions

All related party transactions of the Company are dealt with in accordance with Related Party Transactions Policy
of Company and as per provisions of section 188 of Companies Act 2013 & rules made there under and as per
Listing Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for
approval by specifying the nature, value, terms and conditions of the transactions etc.. Omnibus approval is
ob[2tained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all relaled parly
transactions for which omnibus approval has obtained are presented before the Audil Commitiee as well as o
Board on quarterly basis. Although all relaled parly transactions are enterad in ordinary course of business and at
arm's length basis. There are no materially significant related party lransactions made by the Company with its
promoters, Diractors or Key Managerial Personnel, their relatives elc. that may have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

Suitable disclosures as required by the Accounling Standards (AS 18) are disclosad in Notes to Accounts in the
Annual Report. The Related Parly Transactions Policy of Company available on the Companys website:
www.hisarspinningmills.com, )

b} Di f A ing Treatment in ration of Fma al Statement

The Company has foltowed all relevant Accounting Standards referred to in Sedlon 133 of Companies Act 2013

& rules made there undar and laid down by Inslitute of Chartered Accountants of India, while preparing Financial

Statemants.

During the last three years, there were no strictures or penallies imposed by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges
or any Statutory Authority for non-cOm pliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

d) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil M m

The Company has adopted Wh:slle Blowar Policy and has esiablished the necessary mechanism for employees

1o report concems about unethical behavior. This poticy is reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee to check

the eflectiveness of the policy & relaled matters. No parsonnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.
The relevant details of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Duector s Raport and same is available on the
Company's website: www.hisarspinningmills.com,

2e) it of liange with m lory requirements an ti { the non-man requiremen .

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requireaments. The Company has not ado'bted non-
mandalory requirements.

17 ‘ .
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f) Subsidiary Company

i ¥ . . -
During the year ended 31 March, 2018, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor aniy material listodfunlisted
- subsidiary company. ' :

g) Independent Director's Declartions .-

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meel the criteria of "Independence’ as stipulated under the
Companies Acl,"2013 and Lisling Regulalions. : )

Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel have made disclosure lo he Board retating to all material,
financial and other transactions stating that Ihey did not have any personal interesi that could resutt in a conflict
with the interest of the Company at large. The material, financial and commercial transactions where Key
Managerial Parsonnel have persenal interest forms parl of the disclosure on related parties referred to in Noles 1o
Annual Accounts. . )

13. Performancs evaluation of Board of Directors

.During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and offectivenaess as well®
as |hat of its Committees and individual Oiractors, including the Chairman of the Board. For Board and its -
Committees, the exercise was caried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspacts of " -
the Boards functioning such' as composition of the Board & committees, exparience & competencies,
performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc. The Performance evaluation of Non--. -
Independent directors including the Chairman was carried out by Independent Directors in their separate *
meating. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation resufts, which reflected the overal engagement and
effactiveness of the ‘Board and its Committees. The necessary details regarding criteria of performance
avaluation is mentioned under Director'’s Report, The Performance Evaluation Policy of Board of Directors is
available.on Company's.website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com.

-
Fl

-14. Famillarisation Programme/induction for Independent Directors

At the Board Meetings, apart from the regular agenda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided a_

+ deep and thorough Insight into the business model of the Company and updates either by way of presentation of
business units or otherwisa. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experience. At «
the time af appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointmaent is given to hir/her, which infer alia 1,
explains-the-role; function; duties;- responsibilities expected of him/Mer as a Director of the Company and °

. -expected time commitments. As required under Listing Regulations, Company has conducted a familtarization
programme for its independent directors under which the necessary information was provided to familiarize theomy
with the nature, aclivities, products of the Company and also about their roles, rights, responsibitities in the-

. Company. ’

15, Board Diversity Policy ) )
The Nominalion and Remuneration Commitiee have formulated -Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the™ s,
.L.is&hg:Ragu&aﬁons.-Undu-&hmid-policy...i&.is.recognizod-mal'-:agaoard-compomd,of~'épp:optialely-qualtfbd::..-

«people with broad range of exparience relevant to the business of the Company is imporiant to achieve effeclive
corporate govemance and sustained commercial succass of the Company. In order to ensure that the Company’s -
‘boardroom has appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the -
execution of its business strateqgy, the Company shall while selecting the Board Members consider a number of ’
factors; including but -not limited to age, culiure, functional skills, industry/professional experience, financial ™!
lterate and integrity etc.The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that tha selecled ! 4
candidatas will bring to the Board. . T

18; Means of Commtinications

" The d{lanéni. half yearly & annual financial results, nolices etc. are published in widely circulaling national .}
local dailies newspaper The Stalesman / The Pioneer in English editions and Vyapar Bharti in Hindi Edition. The

18
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same are also being posted on the website of BSE -www.bseindia.com under Scrip Code 521068 and also on the
wabsite of the company. The Management Discussion and Analysis report forms a part of this Annual Report,

“ A B HT |
18. General Shareholder informations ’ ) . - . t

Annugal General Meeting at 12:00 HRS, on 30™ day of September 2016 at Registered Office of lhe Company al
8" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, V.P.O Dabra (Hisar). .

e 1
- - ]
Financial Calendar : Ist Aprit to 31™ March e
Date of Book Closure : : 26.09. 2016 to 30.09.2016
{both days inclusive)

Dividend Paymeant Date NA. .
- Listing on Stock Exchanga : Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) «

_ Serip Code 1521068
I Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 1 L17112HR1992PLC031621 - -!
4 CDSL ISIN No, : INEBBYEQ1014 M
R Ty B
Annua listing fee for the year 2016-2017 has duly been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange(8SE). - - -‘;d

Market price data — High and Low during each month on BSE in the financial year 201 5.18. Stock code -
521068 {Source: www.bseindia.com} .

Months High Low Closed ~ Shares
, April, 2015 5.85 5.54 5.54 900 e |9
y May, 2015 6.72 5.27 6.72 1100 =t
June, 2015 6.66 6.05 8.05 1300 A E
July, 2015 _ - _ . ‘ :_ [_;;
August, 2015 5.75 5.47 547 300 15
Seplember, 2015 - - - — . ) ..I
October, 2015 - - - - R— Bt
November, 2015 5.74 574 574 . 100 it
: December, 2015 6.31 5.46 6.31 3100 -
January, 2016 8.20 6.62 8.20 1300 e
‘ February, 2016 9.04 8.486 8.90 2500 aneq o Lm
] March, 2016 8.88 7.62 7.62 1600 ..., o ey
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s Indus Porifolio Private limited s ., .
G-65, Bali Nagar, New Dethi- 110015 T
Share Transfer System : Shares lodged in physical form with tha RTA darecll; ‘Afi A -b !

or through Company, are processed and relurnad, 1A 140 '9T,

duly ransferred, within fifteen days normally, except T

in cases which are under objection. ., ..., 3 IOHL AL A

. In respact of shares held in dematerialised mode, the St

",transfer lakes place instantaneously between the” e e
transferor lransferee and the Depos:tory Pamc:panl -

lhrough elec:romc debit/credit of the dccountstinvoived: i PzthA

Compliance Officer _Ms.-Tany-Sharrn_a.CompanySecretary.

URue L. - ,r_
E-mail ID's ) ﬂ%srnl?OOO@redlﬂmau com 201 b33
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Distribution. of shareholding as en 31% March, 2016,

Range of Shares No. of % of Shareholders | No.of Shares | % of Shareholding
: * tsm e - |- Shareholders ., — AP .
0-500 10115 ‘97,55 | 1488130 '39.31
501-1000 141 1.35 12500 | 3.01 J
+{1001-5000- - - o~ 74 068w menfame143100. . ] .38, .
*[5001-10000 10 ©010- 75300 } 2:02 1
'110001-20000 9 0.09 145400 3.89
20001-30000 6 0.08 151180 4,05 .
30001-40000 0 0.00 0 | 0
40001-50000 . 3 0.03 134500 3.60 1
50001-100000 7 0.07 460200 | 12.32 1
Above 100000 7 0.07 . 1044690 - 27.97 , )
‘ 10369 100 " 3735000 100 - -
Shareholding Pattemn as on-31* March, 2016. ’ .
s
Category’ _ ' [No. of shares _ - Percentage
Promoters/Promoter Group 1864370 |48.92 !
Fi's/Fil's/ Banks/ Mutual Funds - - !
Indian Public 1787230 |47.85 |
Others 83400 [ 2:23 g
Shares held by Cuslodian & against which|- - |
Depository Receipts have been issued
Total T |373s000 - 100
Details ol’ sharehokling of Directors in the Company.as an'31.03.201 B
Name of Director ~ ~ M , .|No. ofsharesheid |
GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA 115000
ANURAG GUPTA 184250
[SAPNAKANSAL £3100
TRILOKI NATH GOEL . * ' - 400 ' -
_ Demateriatisation of shares : 2175070 (58.23%) shares : o
Plant(s) Location . g" KM, stone, Hisar BriwaniRosd, . ait
T 3 V.P.0:Dabra (Hisar) 125005~ ' 7 <3, = '_
Address for comespondance : . Hisar Spinning Mils imited - R PPE )
SR * 8" KM, stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,” . ‘_
. V.P.O-Dabra {Hisar) 125005 , I 4. 7" =7
. Ph. 01682:260397 : Fox:91:1662- 260397 |
E-mail ID's . B ; ‘ _,‘ N -_

hsleDOO@redlﬂmml com Tty T
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.o 5

LT N 30 110073 T Bylorderiof tie Board of DirectorsiTALIGH:10
ST 5T A TWER (W1 300 A0 10 GHALUOITADH D

. ' Vomam bl Mg oes sty Ly Bdlesrg aT Sdi-
Place: Chandigarh {Anurag Gupta) {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: Septamber 05, 2016 e N Executlve Director. ... Managing Director .. s
T -t : DIN-00192888° . . . DIN-00192985..5) . '

SRS N s [l I 1 ol T

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

1 i,
3
I ' :' !. b -..J

As pro\.;ided under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015/ it is hereby':

* declared that all Board Members and Senior Managment Personnel have affirmed compliance with the:Code of 12

Conduct as adopted by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016.

| HE R B N
R TR PR T L
. . - ) . SRR -7, | R R AT
Place: Chandigarh (Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 ' ‘Managing Director..» '
: . . . - 1 DINQ0192985 n5.u,
: L AT 9
CEQ AND CFO CERTIFICATION 1 e it
To / ‘ L y Cw i
The Board of Directors
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited
(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash Nlow statement of Hisar Spinning Mills ., |q
Limited for the year ended,31* March, 2016 and to the best of our knowledge and:befiel, we .s- g

slate that; ' . T

-{i} these statements do not contain any materially untrue stalement or omit any matesiat fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(if) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in complianca
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) there are. to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by lhe
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's code of
conduct. .

{c) Wa accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and we have evalualed the effectivenass of intemnal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come acress any reportable deficiencies in the
design or aperalion of such internal controls. .

(d) We have indicated o the Auditors and the Audil Committee:
{i} that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
(i) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year: and '
(ii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/- ) Sdi-
{Gopal Krishan Gupta) . (Sharad Goel)
Managing Director . Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chandigarh- .
Date: September 05, 2016
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CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY "ON-COMPBLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE_GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION. E -of SCHEDULE V OF -THE-SEBI {LISTING
OBLIGA“ONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2915 ,,, T .

B

To the Nlambers of Hisar Splnnlng Mllls Llrnltad )
r' "G.,,_i‘_"..l’ I R '

} have axamined the compliance of the condltlons of Corpomle Governance by ‘Hisar "Spinning Mills umlted

Hisar {Haryana) for the year ended March™31, 2016 as stipulated In Regutauun ‘Eof Sdtedule V of the 'SEBI.

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requ:raments) Regulations 2015.

* The comptianca of conditions of Corporate.Govemance is the rasponsibtlrly of the . Compan)fs Management. My ,

examination was limited to the procedures and :mplemantatton thareof, adapled hy the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the condltions of Governance. It is nelthar an.audit.nor. an exprassion.of an opiriton on tha financial
statements of the company. .

In my opinion and to the besl of my information and .according to ‘the explanations given to me, and the
information given-by the managemaent;-| cenify that the-company has complled with the conditions -of Corporate
Govemance as stiputated in the above mentioned. regulat:ons - _h-' -¥

" .- " -
I state that in respect of invastor grievance recamad durlng tha year .ended ‘March, ‘31, ‘2018, 'no investor
grievances ware pending against the Company, as per tha records mainta:ned by. lhe Company and presented lo
ihe Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committes:

| further state that compliance is neither an assurance as. to the future viability of the' Company,nor the:efficiency
-or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the-aftalrs of lhe company

LY

N - ‘Sd.f-:
Ptace: Chandigarh © SANJIVKUMARGOEL 1.
Date: 05.09.2016- - . . Practicing Company Secretary
: FCS No. 2107 iy

C P No. 1248
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~ HISAR'SPINNING MILLS LIMITED -~ _ :
* ' Bl DL + ANNEXURE 1" TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT. *
T T T R T T LI N FORM NO. MR-3

(e ise %6 2 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant tohsectiog_zm (1]I orf the Cornplanias Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies [A'ppojnbnent
Pl R R bbt1 ) IR TR P (L P LA
and Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014 . . :

. t
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016

To,

! The Members,. . .
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited
: 8th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,
i V.P.O Dabra ( Hisar), Haryana -125005

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to

- good corporate practices by Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafier catled “the company”). Secretarial Audit
was conduclad in a manner that provided me e reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conductsistatutory
compliance and exprassing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Limited’s books, papers, minutes books , forms and retums
filed and olher records maintained by the company and also the information provided by tlhe Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in
my opinion , the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2018
complied with the slalutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes
and compliance -mechanism in place to the extent, in the rmanner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. 1 have examined the books, papers minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2016 according to the provisions of
i) The companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made there under: s
i} The Securities Coniracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under:
iy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there under:
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations madae there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial .
- Borrowings; ) .
v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribad under the Securitias and Exchange Board of
india Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-
(a)The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011, . -
(b)}The Sacurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 1992, and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; )
(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2009 (Nol applicable to the Company during the Audit Period), -
(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Beneflits) Regulations, 2014
(Not applicable to tha Company during the Audit Period); -
S {e)The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars Lo an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with cliant;
{9)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); )
(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regutations, 1998
T (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); .. .

T

2. I have raliad on the rapresentation made by the company and ils officers for systerns and mel:hanism put in
place by the company for compliances under the applicable Act, Laws and Regulations (o the Company.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED . : - ﬂ .

' 3.1 have aiso examined mmphanoe with applicable clauses of the followings:

i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, effective fmm July 01,
. 2015,

ii} The erstwhile Listing Agreemenl enterad inlo by the company with Bornbm«r Stock Exchange Limited and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Dtsdosure Requlrameru]
Regulahom -2015 notified w.e. 1. December 01, 2015, -

During the year undar review, the Company has- compliad wlth the pmvbbm of tha Act, Rules, Regulations
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mantxoned above.

I further report that «
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper batance of Exacutm I:hractu's Non -
Executive Direclors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place dl_.mng_th. period, under raview were carried out in compliance mth.tha provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is-given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven. days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on lho agenda.items batore the meeting and for meanmgful participation at the rnaating

All dacisions al Board Meetings-and Committee Meetings were carred out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directars or Committees of the Board, as the case may be:

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, suits, rules, rsgulauona and
guldelines.

Place: Chandigarh T zsdl

Date: 05/09/20168 ) : Sanjiv Kumar Goel
: FCSN0.2107  °

C P No. 1248
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED %

Annexure "2’ to Directors' Repost

Informalion as per section 217{1)(e) read with companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Directors)
Rules 1988 and forming part of the Director's Report for the period ended 31st March, 2018,

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a) Energy conservation measures taken :

The Company has been giving high priority to conservation of energy by close monitoring of energy consuming
equipments. All efforts are made for installing energy saving devices wherever required. :

b) Additional investment and proposals, if any, being Implemented for reduction of consumption of
energy: '

New equipments. whensver required, are purchased from time to time.,

c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:

The measures taken to conserve energy resulted in more production. However, there was no savings in
consumption due to increased production and increase in rates of power,

d) Total energy consumption and anergy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of the
annexure to the rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule thereto:

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
A] Power and Fusl consumption
a) Purchased Unit (KW) 4604426 4132768
Total Amount (Rs.) 39374790 33508880
Rate/Unit {Rs) 8.55 8.1
b) Through Diesel Generator ’
Units{KwW) 150850 304500
Total Amount { Rs.) . 2075420 4845544
Rate/Unit (Rs/KW) 13.76 - 15.91
B) Consumption Par Unit Of © 1549 Unils. 1457 Units
Production - )
Steam Coal Nil Nil
Fumace Oil Nil Nil
Others/Inlemal Generators : Nil Nit
Cotton Yarn Production In MT 3070.484 3045.629
Total Units Consumad 4755276 . 4437268
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED _ : ' .‘. . .

Il. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form-B of the Annexure to the Rules.
1) Research & Development (R & D)

+

a) ‘Specific-area-in-which R & D carried b} the Company: Ni}
b} Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D+ Nil
¢} Future plan of Action: Nil

d) Expenditureon R& D | (Rs. In Lacs)
Capital’ - "*NIL
Revenue NIL
Total g NIL

Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of Tatal Tumaver = NIL
2) TECHNOQLOGY ABé_ORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a) Effonts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaplation and innovation: NIl

b} Benefits derved as a resuft of the above eflforts e. g. product improvement, cost reduction,
product developmeant, import substitution etc: Ni)

c)-In- case.of. importad technology (imported during the last 5 year reckoned rrom the beginning of

the financial year) -- Nsl

3) FOREIGN- EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

1. Activities relating to export, initiatives taken to increase expori, development of new export markets lor

products and services and export ptans: Nil

Value of imports t;alculated on C.|.F. basis:
a Amount (in Rs.)

Particulars - For the Year ended 31.03.2016
Stores & Spares parts 207626
Capital Goods 4521511
Total S 45422737

Expenditure. in foreign currency dunng the financial year on account:
- - Amount {in Rs.}

Partlculars For the Year ended 31.03.2018
Commission on sales 75666
Total - 75666

>

Earnings in foreig'n exchange:

Export of goods calculated on FOB basis

" L]
~Amount (in Rs.)

Particulars | For the Year ended 31.03.2016
Manufactured Goods 7519887
Total = . 75198867

. . By order of the Board of Directors

I |
' . . Sdf- ' Sdi-
Place: Chandigarh ] {Anurag Gupta} {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 03, 2016 to Exacutive Director Managlug‘Dlroctor
' DIN-00192888 DIN-00192985
26 i S
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Annexure '3' to Directors' Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016

of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

(Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) |CIN -

© L17112HR1992PLC031621

i)  IRegistration Date

» 10.04.1992

i) |Name of the Company

: Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

iv) |Category/ Sub-Category of the

. Public Company limited by shares

Company

v) iAddress of the Registered office and |: 9™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, Village & Post Office
scontact details | Dabra, Hisar

vi)  |Whether listed company -  Yes

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

vii} |Name, Address and Contact details of |:

Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, New Dethi-

110015

il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumaver of the company shall be stated:-

Si. No. {Name and Description of main products/ | NIC Code of the 1% to total tumover of the
services Product/ service - | company
. I
1. [Spinning 235112352/247112472 | 100
I
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Il. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: - Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capltal Breakup as parcentage of Total Equity)
_ij Category-wise Share Holding

Category of ‘Mo, of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders ° the year

.

I o R

T T iDemat Physical |Total  %of Demat |Physical |Total %ol |%
! = Total - iTotal  |Chang
. i { . Share Shares |a
s during
1 the
. ' year
A. Promoters
(1) indian
a) _ A4R390 ' 1456710 | 1845100 49.40 1864370 - 1864370 | 48.92 0.52
IndividuatiHUF '
b)Central Gowt | - _ - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt {s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - N .
e)Banks/FI | - - - - - - - _ - -
fyAny Other..... |~ - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) 388300 | 1456710 | 1845100 49.40 1864370 . 1864370 | 49.92 | 0.52
{1):- <o
{2) Foreign - - - - -- - - - -
a) NRIs - - - - - - - - - —
Individuals . '
b) Other - - .- - - - - - - - -
* Individuats .+ .1 .
. c) Bodies Corp, - - - - - - - — -

- d) Banks / FI - - - . - - - S -
«  e}Any Other.... A - - - - - - -
.- Sub-total {A) - - - - - - ] - _ -
! @y U R _ R _

Total -~ '| 388390 | 1456710 | 1845100 49.40 1864370 . 1864370 | 48.92 | 0.52
shareholding of

. Promoter (A) = .

C (AN HANZ) - .
_ "~ - - - =-—BrPubiic Sharehoiding
1. Institutions [~ |
. a) Mutual Funds | - - = - - - - - o -
b} Banks / F| R - - - - - i - -

. c)Caniral Govt S T - - - - - - - -
o d) Szala'GovI{s)__- '”*___— '—___ - - - | - - - -
T e) Vemur‘e,-:‘ e | e - - . - — . "

Capital Funds oL ~ o N )
7 finsuranee -y s 2L - — " T - =
R IILEE 28
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‘HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

' Companies

g) Flis

h} Foreign -
‘Venture Capital

Funds

i) Others
(specify)

'Sub-total -
(B){1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

88800

23700

92500

57700

ii} Overseas

248 |

25500 |83200 223

b} Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

196900

1531200

1728100

48.27 ; 203700

1534430

1738130

48.54

#) Individual
sharehoiders
hokding
*nominal share
capitalin
| excass of Rs 1

“lakh

49100

20000

69100

1.85 49100

0 49100 1.31

'¢) Others
 (specity)

200

200

0.00 |

+
\

200

- 200 0.00

- Sub-total
<(B)2):-

315000

1574500

1889960 .

50.60 | 310700
|

1559930

1870830

50.08

Total Public
! Shareholding
(B)=(BY 1)+

{(B)2)

-| 315000

1574900

1889900

50.60 1 310700

1559930

1870830

50.08

C. Shares held
' by Custodian for
|GDRs & ADRs

‘Grand Totat
(A+B+C)

703330

3031610

3735000

100 ;2175070

1559930

3735000 | tDO

(ii)Shareholding of Promoters

SiNo.

Shareholder's
Nemea

the year

Shareholding at the beginning of | Share holding at the end of the

.| year

No. of
Shares

the

‘EG of total
Shares of

comparny

%of  |No. of
Shares , Shares
Pledge : -
d/ '
encum
bered

% of total
Shares of
the

"|company

%of
Shares
Pledged /
encumber
ed to total
shares

% change
in share
holding
during the
year
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED @@
o ! 'i to total
t | ! isharas. |
f
b . {
1. 'Ram Charan ! : b - -
| Budhwar 10+ 000 . 0 0.00
2. |Ravi Raj Singh 10 : 0.00 ’F “_4._..___6*; " 0.00 B R
3. [sawvic Singh 10 0.00 |- 0 0.00 - -
4 JAunGoel | 25000 087 - 25000 | 0.67 - -
5. |Han Krishan 400 001 |- 0 | 0.00 - -0.01 “
6. {Sharat G Goel 24940 067 | 28040 0.75 . 0.08
7. Sh;ra;_C; éoel. ) 31-0? 1 oos . “0-_“ - 0.00 - T 008
8. | Devinder Kumar ' - - N
Goel 45000 1.20 45000 1.20
9. |Gulab Singh ’ - - -
Goel(HUF) 27840 0.75 1 27940 0.75
_ 10Guiab Singh Goel | 97600 | 281 |- 97600 | 2.61 . -
11|Sharad Goel | 39400 1.05 |- 133000 | 3.58 o 251
12.|Manju Goel 10000 027 |- 15100 0.40 - 013
13.} Triloki Nath Goel 400 0.01 |- 0 0.00 - 001 !
14| Hari Kishan Goel 40000 1.07 |- 40400 1.08 - 0.04
15.| Sunita Goel 48900 131 |- 56900 1.52 - 0.21
16| UshaRani Gupla | 75000 | 201 |- | 75000 | 2.01 . -
17.|Gopal Krishan - _ ) .
|Gupta 115000 3.08 115000 3.08 - ,_
18.|M.L. Kansal 163867 | 439 |- 183867 | 4.39 - - ,
19.{Sharda Kansal 60000 161 |- 60000 | 1.81 - .
20.| Sapna Kansal 63100 169 | 63100 1.69 - - {
21.|Salesh Gupta 12400 033 |- 0 0.00 - -0.33
22.|Shashi Bhushan - ; 057
Gupta 33150 0.89 54650 1,46 =
2, Anuj Gupta 79765 214 |- 181683 4.86 - 2.72
__?-j_-fmuj_@pta‘(_ﬁug) ~29100° 078 |- 0 [ 000 - ~-0.78"
25. A;t-srag Gupt; 1 s7o0s0 233 | 184250 4.93 - 2.60
26.| Ashwani Kumar 29950 0.80 | 52950 | 1.42 - 062 !
27| Gopal Krishan T T ETTTTE T . *.0‘,_46___1"
Gupta & Sons HUF 17018 0.46 o 0.00 ,
2'8-_. 'I_'\"oshan Lal Guplﬂ . - .-_ ) . h; o T
& Sons HUF' | 20000 | 0.54 0 | 000 :
29.| Hari Kumar 27000 0.72 | 1o 0.00 - 072
“Oftamoed | 2es00 | oes || o | o0 | - | 08
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31.| satesh Gupta 5100 0.14 |- 0 oo |- - -0.14
32.; Anurag Gupta - , - -0.98
(HUF) 32800 . 0.88 0 0.00
33.) Anju Gupta 7700 021 |- 7700 0.21 -7 -
34.| Gopal Krishan - - -0.27
Gupta Exacutor '
Roshan Lal 10000 027 0 0.00
35.| Gopal Anurag - - -
{HUF) 25000 0.67 25000 0.67
36.|Gopal Krishan & - - | o710
Sons (HUF) 26000 0.70 0 0.00
37.{ Gopal Anuj (HUF) 25000 067 |- 25000 0.68 - 0.01
38.| Nikhil Goel 160000 428 |- 160400 | 4.29 . 0.01
. 39.|Shilpa Garg 8700 023 - | 800 | 029 } - | -
40.| Ritesh Goel 9300 . 028 |- - 9300 0.25 . -
41.L Ankit Goel 146190 g |- 146190 391 - -
42.( Bindu Goel 10000 0.27 |- 10000 0.27 . -
43.| Shruti Goel 11000 028 |- 11000 0.29 - -
44, Tarun Goel 19100 051 |- 19100 0.52 - 0.01
45.| Manju Goel 5100 014 |- 0 0.00 - -0.14
46.) Megha Goel 7200 0.19 |- 7200 0.19 - _ -
47.i Sharad Goel 93600 251 |- 0 0.00 - -2.51
48.| Naveen Kansal 9100 024 |- 15300 0.42 - 0.18
49 | Anurag Gupla 17200 046 |- 0 0.00 . -0.486
50.{ Anuj Gupta - 17400 0.47 |- 0 . 0.00 .- -0.47
Total ) )
1845100 49.40 1864370 | 49.92 0.52

{iii) Change in Promotars' Shareholding ( please specity, if there is no change) :

Sl. Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharehokding
No beginning of the year during the year
|
No.of  |% of total No. of % of total shares
shares  |shares of the ‘shares of the company
' . Company | ,
At the beginning of the 1845100 49,40 1864370 49.92
year !
Increase/Decrease 19270 0.52 : - -
during the year . _
At the End of the ysar’ 1864370 49.92 1864370 49.92
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs):
Sl . _ 1Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. ) beginning of the year during the year
. ' ' |
Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares | % of lotal No, of % of total | % change in
shares of  [shares shares of  |share holding
“Ithe S “[the ~| during the
company company  |year
1 |{Shashi Rani & Shyam Sunder -
i Gupta 49100 1.3 49100 1.3
2 20000 -
Sushila Goel 0.54 20000 0.54
3 !Shri Parasram Holdings Pwi. ) 033
Lid 18900 0.51 6900 0.18
4 .
Amulys Leasing & Finance Ltd. | 16700 0.45 16700 045
5 -
Multiplex Capital Lid. 15900 0.43 15900 0.43
6 .
CPR Capital Services Lid. 12800 0.34 12800 0.34
7 -
. Rarnan Mehra 7300 0.20 7300 0.20
i a R .
| Alankit Assigments Limited (6700 0.18 6700 0.18
9 .
Bajrang Lal Goel 6200 017 6200 0.17
10 ) , 0.14
Ram Phal 0o 0.00 5300 0.14

{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

Sl 'lFor Each of {hie Directors and Shareholding at the beginning of the I Cumulative Shareholding
No. KMP year . iduring the year
|
Name of the Directorf KMP No. of shares  |% of total shares of [No. of % of total shares
’ the company Ishares of the company
1. GOPALKRISHAN GUPTA © 1150000 3.08 115000 308
2. ANURAG GUPTA 104250 2.79 184250 | 4.93.
3. SAPNAKANSAL i 63100 - 1.69 63100 1.69
4, SHARAD GOEL 133000 3.56 133000 .56
. 5.+ TRILOKI NATH GOEL 400 0.01 400 0.01
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

B4

Indebtedness of the Company including interest oi:tstandlngfaccrued but not due for payment

(InRs. }
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits {Loans Indebtedness
‘ ]
indebtedness at the beginning of the financlal year
‘i) Principal Amotint 29627880 - - 29627880
ii) Interest due but - - -- -
not paid
iii) Interest accrued 174009 - - 174009
but nol due -
Total {i+ii+iii) 29801889 - - 29801889
' ) Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
(a)  Addition | 31016807 - -~ ‘ 31016807
_i
/()  Reduction | - - - -
! {
Net Change ! 31016807 - - 31016807
Indebtedness at the end of the financlal year
i) Principal Amount 60418470 - - 650418470
ii) Interest due but | - | - — -
not paid f !
iii) Interest accrued - 400226 - - 400226
bt not due ' ‘
|
l - e ¢ e ——— e
"Total (i+ii+iil) 60818696 - - 60818696

33




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

VI. REMUNERATION OF GIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whola-time Directors andfor Manager :-

s
'NQ.

{inRs.)

Particulars of
Remuneration’

Name of MDAWTD/ . Manager

Tolal Amount

Mr. Anurag Gupata

Gross salary |

1(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

360000

360000

(b) Value of perquisites
ufs 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

{¢) Profits in lieu of .
salary under section -
17(3) Income-tax Act, -
1961 . :

Stock Oplion -

Sweal Equity

Ll Bl B

Commission

-a5 % of pi_fo'ﬁl :

. ————

- others, specify... -

e R -

Others, please specify.
{Provident fund)

Toal(A) - .- ¢

360000

360000

Ceiling as per the Act’

As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

8. Remuneration 'to othe

rdirectors:

{ln Rs.)

51

Particulars of
Remuneration

+ r

Namae-of Directors

Tino.

* | Oirectors .

R

1. Independent

Total Amount

Fea for attending board
! cominittee mesetings -

Commission .+ - 1

Othrers. please specify

1 Total (1)

Directors:, ~

2..0ther Non-Executive |

T e S g
Cthers; pleasa.specify.- |,

' Fee for ettending board
|/ commitlee meetings+

b - . pbn e e g  —

/Conmimission:

e ————aee—
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| Totat2y, -

Total (B)={1+2) -

Remuneration

Total Managerial B

Overall Ceiling as per
the Act .

No Sitting Fees ware paid to any Independent Director

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL bTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(InRs.)

Sl
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

1

Key Managerial Personnel

+
t
I
!

Sharad Goel
Chief Financial
Officer

Tanu Sharma
Company
Secretary

Total

. \Gross salary

'{a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17{1) of the Income-tax Act,
1861

125598 551613

&

677211

{b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

() Profits in lieu of salary under
, section 17(3) Income-tax
‘Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
:;as % of

- profit
= others, specify...

‘Others, please
specify (Provident fund)

Total

i 125598 551613

677211

Vil PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL
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Annexure ‘4’ to Directors’' Report )

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

1. INTRODUCTION

The Company conducts its operations under the directions of the Board of Directors within the framework laid
down by the-Companies Act, 2013, the Aricles of Association of the Company, Listing Agreement with stock
exchanges, internal code of conduct and poticies formulated by the Company for its Board of Directors and
Senior Management. The Company's Board of Directors is dedicated fo act in good faith, exercise their | Judgmenl 3
on an informed basis and in the bast interest of the Company and its stakeholders. This policy is in compliance T
with the Section 178 of the-Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereto and Clauses. of the Listing -
Regulations.

The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework and set standards for their nornination.
remunaration and evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and officials comprising the Senior
Management, The Company aims to achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills amongst its Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy (“the Poliéy') applies to the Board of Directors (the
Board"); Key Managerial Persannel {the “KMP") and the Senior Managemenl Parsonnel of Hisar Spinning Mills
Limited (the “Company™).

*Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means-

(i} Chairman & Managing Direclor
(i) Company Secretary

{iii} Whole- time Director

{wv) Chief Financial Officer; and
(v) Such other Officer as may be prescribed by the Board or the Central Government.

-

The expression “seniof management” means personnel of-the company who are members ol its core
managemenl team exciuding Board of Direclors comprising all members of management one level below the
executive directors, including the functional heads.

2. YCONSTITUTION OF NCMINATION'AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination-and-Remuneration Committee shall.be constituted by the Board of Directors in its. Meeung The
members-of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman or appoint
Chairman of .the Committee, The Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee
bul shall ngt be a Chairman of the Commitiee. Minimum two members shall constitute a quorum for the
Committee Meeting. The lerms of the Committee shall be decided by the Board of Directors in ils meeting. The
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting or -
may nominate soma other member to answer the shareholder's quenes.

COMMITTEE MEMBER'S INTERESTS -
a) A member of the Commitiee is not entilled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a
meeting or when his performance is being evaluated.

L,b) The Commmee may invile.such. execuuves as it considers appropriate,.to be.present at the meetings of the
Committeé®

VOTING
a) Matlers arising for delermination at tha Commitiee Meelings shall be decided by a majority shall be decided by

a majority of votes of Members present and voling and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a
decision of the Committes.

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote,
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‘3. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE NOHINATION AND.BEMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

- Idenlaf cation of persons qualified to be the directors and in seruor management in accordance with the criteria -
laid down.
ll. Recommend to the Board appointed and removal of the directors apart from the nemmee directors as
" proposed by the Government of Punjab and in the Senior Management
iti.Evaluation of evary director's performance.
. W Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a.diractor.
V. Recommendation of Remuneration polity for the directors, KMP and other employees.
V1. Other Terms of Reference/ scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be as notified by the
" appropriate authority from time to time or as direcledEy the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time,

A, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
'« Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least snnually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board;

_ = Identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the KMPs or in lhe Senior Managemenl ol the
Company;
» Recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals nomunaled for ditectorship;
+ Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration payable to the Daraclors! KMPs/ Senior Officials so
appointed/ reappointed;
= Assassing the independance of independent directors;
+ Such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing
Agreement and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under;
» To make recommendations to the Board _conceming any mallers relating lo the centlnualion in office of any
Diractor at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Execulive Director as an employee
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;
* Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonabie and suflicient, relationship of remuneration to
pefformance is clear and meels appropriate performance benchmarks; .
+ To devise a policy on Board diversity;
+ To davelop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
It shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall be supponed by the Company Secretary to organize

- the evaluation process and eccordmgly conclude the sieps required to be taken. The evaluation process will be
- used constructively as a system to improve the directors’ and commiltees’ effeclivenass, lo maximize their -
strength and to tackle their shortcomings.

The Board of Directors shall underiake the following activities on an annual basis:

1. The Chairman of the Company shall meet with each and every director individually to discuss his/ her
performance throughout the year.

2. Review performance evaluation reports submitted by the Chairperson of various committees slong with their
suggestions on improving the effectiveness of the committes. Also, the requirement of establishing any new
committees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

3.Review the various sirategies of tha Company and accordingly sel tha performance objectives for directors, in
consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company's business,

4. The Board as a.whola shall discuss and analyze its own performance during the year logether with
. suggestions for improvement therson, pursuanl to the performance abjeclives,

In conformity with the requirements of the Act, the performance evaluation of andepend ent cl:rectors shall be done -
by the entlre Board of Directors, exc!ud:ng the director bemg evaluated

6. ONSIBILITIES O INDPENDENT DlR CTOR

In pursuance of the Cumparues Act, 201 and rules framed and nolified there under read with the amendments in
the Listing Agreement as notifidd on 17" Aprii, 2014, the ambit of roles and responslbulnt:ee of Independent
Diractors has widened. The following roles, responsibilities and duties have been duly incorporated so far:
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1. Limit on number of directorships R o .

a. A person shall not serve as an independent director in more than seven listed cofmnpanies. .

b. Further, any person who is serving as a wholé lime director in any listed .company shall serve ‘as an
independent director in not more than three listed companies, .. . ' . .
‘2. Every independent director shall at the'first meeting of the Board in which he paricipates as a director and
thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any change in the

. gircumstances which may affect his siatus as an independent director, give 8 declaration thal he meets the
criteria of independence, = . )

3. Quallfications of independent director.- An independent director shall possess appropriate skills,
experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration,
research, corporate governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business.

4. Guidelines of professional conduct:

An independent director shall: . .

(a) uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity;

{b) act objectively and construclively while exercising his duties;
ic) exercise his responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company, -

1) devote sufficient lime and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced dacision making;
2} not allow any exiraneous considerations thal willwitiate his exercise of objective indepenident judgment in Lhe.
paramount interest of. thé company as a whole, while concurring in or dissanting from the colleclive judgment of

the Board in its decision making; . ’ . .

{f} not abuse his position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purposa of gaining direct

or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated parson;

{g) refrain from any action that would lead 1o loss of his independence; }

(h} where circumstances arise which make an independent director lose his independence, the.independent
director must immediately inform the Beard accordingly;

{i) assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.

5. Role and functions: -
Tha independent directors shall: )
{a} help in bringing an independent -judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations especially on issues of
stralegy, performance, risk managemenl, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct; -
{b) bring an objective view in tha avaluation of the performance of board and management; )
(¢) scrutinise the performance of managemant in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance; ) ' -
(d} satisfy themselves on the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and the systems of risk
management are robust and defensible; T . - .
{e) safeguard the interests of all stakeholders, particularly the minority shareholders;
{f) balance the conflicting inlerest of the stakeholders; - . - : SR
(g} determine appropriate levels of remuneration of execulive directors, key managerial personnel and senior, -
managemenl and have'a prime role in appointing and where necessary recommand remaval of executive
dirgctors, key managerial parsonnel and senior management;

_~—'{n)*modarate and”arbilrate, in the_interest of sthe=company_ as a whole, in siluations of- conflict between
managemen! and sharehoider’s interesl. U .

8. Duties:

0D

The independent directors shall: oo

. {a) underlake appropriate induction and regutarly updale and refresh Lheir skliis, knowledge and familiarity with
the company; : . : . . . . ,
(b) seek appropriate clarification or amplification of information and, whare necessary, take and follow appropriate
profassional advice and opinion of outside experis at the expensa af the company; B
{c) strive to atlend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board commitiees of which he is a member, .
{d) participate constructivety and- actively in the committees of the Board in which they are chairpersons or
members; . ' : ) S
{e) strive 1o attend the general meetings of the company;

(f) where they have concems a.bout the running of the company or a 'probosed action, ensure that these are
sddressed by the Board and. to the extent that they are not resolved, insist that their concerns ara recorded in
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- the minutes of the Board meeting; :
{g) keap themselves well informed about lhe oompany and the extemal enwronment In which it operates;
{h} not to unfairty obstruct the functioning of an otherwiie proper Board or committee of the Board;
(i} pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are held before approving relaled party

_..transactions and assure themselves that the same are in the inlerest of the company; .- -
(j) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequate and funclional vigil mechanism and to ensure lhat the
interests of 8 person who uses such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such use;
(k) report concemns about unethical behawour. actual or suspected fraud or wolation of the company's code of
conducl or ethics policy; L=

=~ (1) acting’ withle' Wi alitarily, asSist’in protactinig lha légilimate interests of the company, shareholders and its
. employees;
{m} not disclose confidenlial information, including comrnarcual secrets, technolognes advertising and sales
promotion plans, unpublished pnr.:e sensmve information, unless such disclosure is expressly approved by tha
Boal'dorreqml'odbylaw ) awo? [ T “ + AR i i

+

7. Separate meetings: o, L t.o. ,;*_
Ty, i R '
. {a) The independent directors of the company shall hold al least one meeung in a year, without the attendance of
- non-independent directors and members of management;
- (b) All the independent directors of the company shall strive to be present at such meeting:  +
. (¢) The meeting shall; ' '
> (i) review the performance 'of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole:
.. (i) review tha performance of the Chairperson of the company, takmg into account the views of executive
% directors and non-executive direclors;
y (ur} assass the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company mansgemem and the
% Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

o

“ 8. Evalustion mechanism: . ' SO
. {a) The Nomination Commitlée ghall lay down thé evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent
. directors.
. (b} The company shall disclose*the criteria for performance evalustion, as laid down by the Nomination

- Committee, in its Annual Report. * < 3,

{c) The performance evaliuation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Drrectors excluding’

<-the direcior being evaluated.
. -{d) On tha basis of the report of performance e\raluation it shall be determined whether to extend or oontlnue the

t' lam\ o( appointrnenfof the independem director. ' H

ey . 3 ) "- . :
. 9. Training of lndopondont Directors, . ; ) : o
- s B AR SRVR L i, .
i' (a) The company shall provicle suitable traimng to mdepemdenl drmctors to famliliarize them with the company,
< their roles, rights, responslbdlﬁoa in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
£ modet of the company, etc.
{b) The delails of such training imparted shall be disclosed | in lha Annual Report. -

7. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS/ KMPs/ SENIOR OEE CIALS *, ST L

. = T My
. P Enhancing the competencias of tha Board and attracting as well as relalning talented employses for role

2 of KMP/ a level below KMP are the basis-for he Nomination and Remuneration Committed to select a candidate:
for,sppointment 1o the Board. When recommending a candidate for appointment (except for Nomlnea Directors),
lhe__rylgmmation and Remuneration Corr:mmee has regard to:. 4,_,,).]‘ 1 ER R ;w, WY' o

i Hiad g ST - ;3 -

.. % . sassessing the appointee egamsl a mnge of criteria whichlincludes but nat.be: Hrmted o qualiﬂmhons
| - skilis, reglonal -and industry exparence, background and other 'qualities required:to oparale suwessfuly in the
| T posibon mthduaregardforthebeneﬂtsfrorndiverstlylnglheBoard tel Mibrasabii, o - ,, -

L‘ Sy e Ay ol BP0 TRt BA A% n, By ome b

1 s . the exient to which the appointes is hkely to conlnbule to the overalil eﬂ'octivmaz;s of the, Board work

oonswclwely with the existing directors and enhance the efficiencies of the Company, ~

PR ] AT Y
Pt * "- »
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-

pd the skills and experience thal the appointee brings to the role of KMP{ Senior Official and how an
appaintee will enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whole,

»  the nature of existing pg‘silions heid by the appointea including direciorships or other relationships and
the impact they may have on the appointee’s ability to exarcise independent judgment,

1
2

PR

2. Personal Specifications: o
- Degree holder in relavant disciplines, :

- * - - -
+ * Experience of management in a diverse organization, - X
%  Excellent interpersonal, commurication and represaentational skills,
» Demonstrable leadership skills - .
> .  Commitment to high standards of ;ethics, personal integrity and probity,
¥ Commitment 10 the promotion of equal opgortunities, community cohesion and
healih and safety in the workplace, -~ . oo
3 Having continuous professional development to refresh knowledge and skills. 4 -

For details of the personal specifications refer lo Annexure 1.

3. Latters of Appointment:

Each Directorf KMP/ Senior Officials is required to sign the fetter of appointment with the Company containing the
terms of appointment and the role assignad in the Company.

4. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senlor Management:

. The remunaration package and compensauon for Directors. KMPs and Senior Officlals shall be determined as

b per lhe service nies of the Company and the limits and statutory requirements as prescried under lhe
Companias Act, 2013 from time to time. . )
I?
8. EVALUATION FACTORS:
The Board of Diractors 'shall pay rogardé 1o the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the
o Pperformance of a particular director. ‘
In respect of each of the avaluation faclors, various aspects have been provided to assist with the évaluaﬂon
- procass in respect of performance of independent directors, non- independent directors, ‘other employees of the
Company and Committees of Directors separately, a8 such, evaluation factors may vary in accordance with thelr
respective functions and duties. . # .
Rating Scale
vil o~ Scale . Performance .
Péln 5 s = "Excellent "
» 4 N {;ow
o 3 . Satisfactory .
. 2 Needs Improvement :
O 1 Unacceptable . -
I oo T 1
Al Ca By e ) D SR T . ST
o.!h:!:'l " lungﬁﬂnﬁutl QlB §§IQB§ q E-’ v’ fa.e ' . N
"..,““.___h = £ I Y | J ¢
~HY N T I LA T el bty g . . aral n

At

> Compliance with Articies of Association, Companiés Act & other laws ' '
205 Compliance With'elhical slandards & code of conduct of the Company
“rli 3 aggistancs inimplementing Comorate Govemnance practices :
3 Rendaring independent, unbiased opinion, . .-y, 4
> Attendance & presence in General Meetings
o ‘Leadership CQualities” - S gty :
» Qualifications T N S LT N IR
. pr 40 -
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Disclosure of non-independence, if exists PN S e T3 FiAn
Independent view on key appointments & Strategy Formulation RARSISES : A 'H
Objective evaluation of Board's performance N
Reaviaw of integrity of financial informaticn & risk management
Safeguard of stakeholklers’ interests
Appointment 8 Removal of KMPs
Delermination of level of remuneration of KMPs
Updation of gkills & knowledge
Punctuality
Information regarding extarnal enviranment
Seeking expert opinion, when required
Raising of concerns to the Board -
Safeguarding interest of whistle- blowers undar Vigil Mechanism
Reporting of Frauds, violations etc.
Team work attributes i . L, v
Safeguard of confidential information S

1"

MW N VW VNV VY YN Y

3

LM O

DPENDENT DIREC ECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Overall Rating

Comptiance with Articte of Association, Companies Act & other laws : !
Strategic Planning- Financial & Business '

Moniloring performance against plans

Compliance with sthical standards & code of conduct

Exercising duties diligently .

Qualifications

Punctuality

Disclosure of Interest

Leadership skil's

Motivating employees, providing assisiance & dlrections

Establishment of internal control processes

Communication skills

Attandance & presence in meetings of Board & Committaes

Attandance of Genera! Mestings

Teamn work attributes

Monitoring policies. ancouraging suggestions

Safegusrd of confidential information

COMMITTEES OF BOARD
*
The Board has constituted the following committeas:

VYV Y Y VY VYYVYY VY YVYYY

1. Audit Commitiee ] —_—
2. Nominaiion 8 Remuneratian Committee g
3 aakemld-ors Relationahip Committee St

N [ . ot

Ty
For evaluating the performance of each oommiuee. the Board of Diredors shall pay regarcls to tho following
aspects; v !

' Qverall Rating

. DI
& P

Compltanca with Articles of Assaciation, Companias Act & other laws
Compliance with ethical standards & Code of Conduct of the Compsny
Committea's accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives '

Adherence 1o Articles of Association, Companies Act and othar appbcable laws

: 4
. - o i

Y VYV
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' Redressal of complainis & grievances

w

5  Coordinalion with other committees and Board of Directors.
>  Fulfilment of roles & responsibilities T

»  Adherence to Company's’ poticies and'internal procedures
9. REVIEW ' -~

Subject lo the approval of the Board of Direclors, lhe “Nomination

‘and Remuneration Committee” reserves its

righl to review and amend this policy, if required, 10 35erizin the approprialeness as per A8 Needs of the

Company. The Policy may be

amended by passing a resolution at a meeting

of ‘the Nomination and

-Remuneration Committes and a subsequeni approval by the Board of directors in their Board Meeting.” T
2 ) A

10. DISCLOSURE . ,
In accordance with (he requirement under the Act, disclosure

‘

regarding the manner in which the performance

evaluation has been done by the Board of Directors of its own performance. performance of various committees
. -of Directors and individual directors’ performance will be made by the Board of Directors in the Board's Report.

“Further, the Board's Report containing such statement will be made available for the review of shareholders at
the General Meeting of the Company. ' ST

-Annexure- 1

“Parsonal Specifications for Directors:

1. Qualifications
» Degree holder in:relevant disdplin&s-(e-.g.— management; accountancy, legal); or
» Recognised specialist
*2. Experience )
> Experience of management in a diverse organization” .
> . Experience ~in  accounting . and finance,  administration;  corporate and strategic
~ planning or fund management _ o
% Demonstrable ability to'work effectively with a'Board of Directors
3. -Skills » i
> Excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skills
» Demonstrable leadership skills o .
> Extensive.team building.and managemen skills . :
» Strong influencing and-negotiating skis ., . - - '
% Having.continuous professional development to refresh knowledge and skills™ - ¥~
& Ablities and Attributes |
_'m.."-i‘_‘; ’ i . : *
> Commitmenl to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity " - - .
> Commitment. "o the promotion of equal opportunities, ~community; cohesion ;
health and safety in the workplace " _ < ' .
5.  Political inclinations and opinions. .
— RIS - 42

‘-'fand A




. - - - oo

, : W T '
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ° : eSS _ ) ﬂ @

“Mechanism for Performance 'Eval‘uati.on of Directors” |
. " ® " (Legal Framework) . - :

in the endeavour to safeguard the iriterest of public at large, the Companies ACt: 2013 (‘the Act’) provides that the

.performance of the Board of Directors of Listed Companies and prescribed class of companies must be reviewed
‘regularty against appropriate measures. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of a
Company has been obliged under Section 178 of the Act to formuiate a draft policy for recommending it to the
Board of Directors of the Company, setting the criteria, based on which the performance of each and avery
director including the parformance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Based on such performance evaluation, femuneration of direciors, KMPs and employees shall be
determined. Such an evaluation procedure will provide a fine system of checks and balances on the performance
of the Directors and will ensure that they exercise their powers In a rational manner. Relavant extracts of Section
178 of tha Act reads as: B v . i

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 ' o

(1) The Board of Directors of every listed company and such other class or classes of companies, as may be

prescribed shall ‘constitute the Nomination and Rémuneration Committee censisting of three_or more non- '

execulive directors out of which nol less than one-half shall be independent directors: - .
+ Provided ihat, the chairperson of the company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a

member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committea,

(2) The Nomination and Remuneration Committea shall ientify persons who are qualified to become directors

and who may be .appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the

Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director's performance.

(3) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to tha Board a policy, relating to the

remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. )

{4) The Nomiriation and Remuneration Committes shall, while formulating the policy urder sub-saction (3) ensure

that— . '

(8) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to atiract, retain and molivate direciors

of the quality required 1o run the company successiully; o e :

{b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks: and

(c) remuneration lo directors, key managerial personnsl and senior management involvas a balance hetween

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
" company and its goals: L ’ <

Provided that such’policy shall be disclosed in the Board's report. )

(5) The Board of Directors of a company which consists of more than one thousand shareholders, debenture-

* holders, deposit-hokders and any other security holders st any time during a financial year shall constitute a
Stakeholders Relationship Commiltee consisting of a chairperson who shall be a non-executive director and such
other members as may be decided by the Board. . ; - T
(8) The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall consider and resalve the grievances of sacurity holders of the
company. - .
{7) The chairperson of each of the committeas constituted under this section or, in his abgence, any olhe‘r? R
member of the committee authorised by him in this behalf shall attend the general meetings of.the company,
{8) In case of any contravenlion of the provisions of section 177 and this secfion, the company shall be .
punishable with fine which shall not be less than one lakh rupees but which may extend lo five lakh rupees and -
every officer of the company who is in default shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend.
lo one year or with fine which shafl not be less than twenty-five thousand rupees but which may extend o one .

. lakh rupees, or with both: _ L : o ST e
Provided that non-consideration of resolution of any grievance by the Stakeholders Relétiqqk_hip Committes in
good faith shall not constitute a contravention of this section. : o »

Expianation.—The expression “senior management” means pérsonnel of the company who are-’membe_rﬁ of it~ - '
core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below
the executive directors, including the functional heads. : : . .

As per Rule 6 of Companias (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of Diractors of fouowing‘
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classes ol Companies shall conslitute a Nomination and Remunearation Commiltea:.

Committees of tha Board.- The Board of, directors of every listed companies-and the following classes of
companies shall constitute an Audit Committee and a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board-

(i) all public companies with a paid up capital of ten crore rupees or more; :

{ii) al public companies having turnover of one hundred crore rupees or more; . . L
(i) atl public companias, having in aggregate, outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or deposits
axceeding fifty crore rupees or more. : ' . . ’

Expianation.- The paid up share capital or tumover of cutstanding loans, or bomrowings or debanlﬁre_s or
deposits, as lhe case may be, as existing on the date of last audited Financial Statements shall be aken into
account for the purposes of this rule. :

The Act, under Clause VIl of schedule IV, casts an abligation on the part of the Board of Directors for evaluating
the parformance of independant directors. All the Directors on the Board of a Company, except the independent
director whosa performance is being evaluated, will assess the performance of independent director. Accordingly,
a report of performance evaluation of each independent director of the Company would be prepared, which would
determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the concemed independenl director or not.

SCHEDULE IV
[Sea section 149(8)]
CODE FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS .
The Code is a guide to professional conduct for independent directors. Adherence to these standards by
independent directors and fuffitment of their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner will promote
confidence of the investment community, particularly minority shareholders, regulators and companias in the
inslitution of independent directors. .

I. Guidelines of professional conduct:
An independent director shall: *

{1) uphold ‘ethical standards of integrity.and probity;

(2) act objectively and constructivaly while exercising his duties;

(3) exercise his resp’é:_nsibililies in a bona fide mannar In Ihe interest of the company,; .

{4} devole sufficient time and altention 10 his professional obligations for informad and balanced decision making:

{5) not aliow any extranecus considerations that will vitiale his exercisa of objective independenl judgment in the

paramount interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting from the collactive judgment of

the Board in its decision making; - S . -t

{6) nol abuse his position to the detriment of the.company or its shareholders or for the purpose of gaining direct

or indirect perscnal advantage or advantage for any associated person; - - '

{7) refrain from any action thal would lead lo loss of his indepandence; ' oo

(8) whare circumstances arise which make an independent_director lose his independence, the independent
director must immediately inform the Board accordingly: P

(9) assist the company in impiementing the best corporate governance pradlices.

Ii. Rote and functions:
r

.The indepandenl directors, shall;

(1) help in-brnging an independent judgment .to bear on the Board's deliberations especiaily on issues
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards &f conduct:

(2) bring an objactive view in he, evaluation of the performance of board and management; -

(3} scrutinise the performance of managemaent in'meeting agreed goals and objectivas and monitor the reporting
of parformance; - C. .- )

(3) satisly themselves on the integrity of financial information and thal financial controld and the systems of risk
management are robust and defensible; . .

L] X Lo
{5) safeguard the interests of all stakeholdars, particularty the minority shareholders: .
{6) balance the conflicting interest of the stakeholders; .
44
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(7} determine appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, key managerial personnel and sefior

management and have a prime role in appoinling and where necessary recommend removal of éxecutive

-directors, key managerial personnel and senior management;.

{8) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict between
—-managameni-and shareholder’s interest.

it. Dutles:
The indegendent directors shall :

{1) undertake appropriate induction and regulardy update and refresh their skills, knowledge and familiarity with
» the company; -

{2} sesk appropriate clarification or amplnﬁcahon of information and, where necessary, take and follow appropriate
1 professional advice and opinion of outside experis at the expense of the company;

{3) strive to attend all meelings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committeas of which he is a member:

{4) padicipale oonstructwely and aclively in the commilttees of the Board in which they are chairpersons or

members;

{5) strive to attend the ganeral meetings of the company;

{6) where they have concems about (he nunning of the company or a8 proposed aclion, ensure that these are

addressed by lhe Board end, to tha extent that they are not rescived, insist that their concems are recorded in

the minutes of the Board meeting;

{7} keep themselves well informed about Lthe company and the external environment in which it operates;

{8) not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board:
1{9) pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are held before approving related party
. ransactions and assure themselves that the same are in the interest of the company;

{10) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequata and functional vigil mechanism and to ensure that
.- the interests of a person who usas such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such usa;

{11) report concemns aboul unethical bahaviour, actual or suspacted fraud or violation of the company's code of
L - conduct or ethics policy;

{12) acting within his authority, assist in protecting the legitimata interests of the company, shareholders and its

: employees;
« (13) not disclose confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales
¢ promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information. unless such disclosure is expressly approved by the .

Board or required by law.

IV. Mannar of appointmaent:

- {1) Appointmeni -process of independent directors shall be independent of the company management; while
3 selecling independent direclors the Board shall ensure thal there is appropriate batance of skills, experience and -
knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. -
(2) The appointment of independent director(s} of the company shall be approvad at the meeting of the
shareholders.
{3) The explanatory staternenl attached to the notice of the meeting for approving the appointment of
» independent director shall include a statement that in the opinion of the Board, the independent director proposed
1o be appointed fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under and thal the proposed
director is independant of the managemanl.
" (4) The appointment of independent directors shall be formalised through a letier of appointment, which shall set
= out
{a) the tarm of appointment;
+ {b) the expectation of the Board from the appointed director; the Board-level committee(s) in which the director i is
expectad lo serve and its lasks;
2 {c) the fiduciary duties thal coma with such an appointment along with accompanymg Ilabllmes
[d) provision for Directors and Officers (D and O) insurance, if any;
. {e) the Code of Business Ethics that the company expects its directors and employees o follow:
¥ {f) the list of actions that a direclor should nol do while functioning as such in the company; and
(g) the remuneration, mentioning pariodic fees, reimbursement of expensas for pamcipatlon in the Boards and
.....oihet‘.rneetmgs and.profit.related commission, if any, . \

(5) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall be open for inspeclion at the
’ ragistered office of the company by any member during normal business hours. -

| | 45




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED &ﬂ

{6} The terms and conditions of appointmeni of independent directors shall also_be pested on the company’s
wabsite. ‘ - A

V. Re-appointment:
The re-appointment of independent director shall be on the basis of report of performance evaluation,
V1. Resignation or removal:

{1) The resignation or removal of an independent director shall be in the same manner as is provided in seclions
168 and 169 of the Acl. ‘ :

(2} An independent director who resigns of is removed from the Board of the company shall be replaced by a new
independent director within a period of not more than one hundred and eighty days from the date of such
resignation or removal, as the case may be.

{3) Where the company lulfils the requirement of independent directors in its Board even without filling the
vacancy created by such resignation or removal, as the case may be, the requirement of replacement by a new
independent director shall not apply.

VIl. Separate maotings:

(1) The independent directors of the company shall hoid at least one meeting in 8 year, without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of management;
(2) All the independent directors of the company shall strive to ba present at such meeling;
{3) The meeting shall:
(a) review the performance of non-independenl directors and the Board as a whole;
{b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors; '

& (c) assess the quality, quantity and timetiness of flow of information between the company management and the
Board that is necessary for tha Board 1o affectivaly and reasonably perform their duties.

VIil. Evaluation machanism: .

{1) The pertormance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, exchuding
the director being evaluated. )

(2) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent director.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIQ‘N AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDIAN ECONOMY WITH REGARD TQ COTTON & TEXTILE INDUSTRIES

India has the largést area under cotton cultivation in the world, covering 12.7 million hectares of cullivated land,
which constitute about 37% of the total area under cotton in the world, India has been a major exporter since
2005-06 and is cumently the world's second largest exporter. Apart from these, cotton is a major component of
~the Indian lextiles industry, which consumes over 70% of domesticalty produced cotton. Cotton is an important
~c¢ash crop. India is a major player in global textiles market and garments. It is one of the few nations having
strong presence across the textile value chain from natural and synthalic fibers to yarn, fabrics, blends and
{inished products.

COTTON OVERVIEW ' T

The Indian cotlon scenario is forecast that cotton production in India will fafi by over 7% to around 34 million
bales (170 kg each) for the Oclober 2015-September 2016 crop year against 38 million bales in the previous
year. Despite a drop in production, cotton prices have been In a bear grip owing o higher carryover stocks.
Cotton prices in the international markel have also crashed to a level not seen since August 2009. The fall is due
lo widespread fears that China, which has been a nel big importer, has started selling cotton from reserves,
depressing prices world over. China has slarted to sell 1.5 million ton bakes from 3™ May 2016 to 31" August
2016 which has further reduced chances of import of colton in to China.

r-;or last few years, when market arrivals of cotton reduces to trickle, the pricas show sharp upward frend and
'~ similar situation is expected (o happen this year also. The prices have already started firming up and expected 1o
- go up by almost 7-8% in next three months.

The Indian iextile industry is export-orented, facing many challenges, which can be primarily attributed to
¢ sluggish global demand as well as deteriorating global competitivenass of the domestic textile industry. Despita
' faling_prices, exports to neighbering countries like Pakistan and Bangladesh is taking place due to freight

advantage of Indian players have makes trade viable.

KEY MOTIVATORS N BUDGET 2018-17 FOR TEXTILE INDUSTRIES

The Union Budget 2016-17 is pro-agricultura, pro-rural and pro-infrastructure budget, increased allocations in
these sector will definitely help to strengthen the overall gconomy and enable long term growth. The indian
Textile Industries has welcomed the Budgst by saying it focuses on employment opportunities and skill, which
makes lextile industry a significant contributor to job pravider and supporting skill development. Emphasis on
sector specific skill development and opening of training centers is appreciated. Reduction in Customs Duty from-

- 5 per cent lo 2.5 per cent on specified fibres and yarns is indeed a good step and it may resull in reduction in
cost of such fibres and yarns for spinners and weavers. However, levy of Excise Duty on branded garments

- seems inconsistent and premature when GST introduction is not too far away. Increase of service tax from 14,50
percent to 15 percent will have an adverse effect on the business economics.

STRENGTHS & OPPORTUNITIES

There is a scope for potential growth in the textile industry as India's share in global trade in textiles is weak,
compared lo other couniries, based on the availability of raw material and skills. The free trade environment is o
geod opportunity for Indian textile industry to increase its share in the global market. Neveriheless, there are
growth opportunities for the Indian textite industry; especially in yarns and fabrics by integrating with leading
readymade garment-exporting countries Iikp Bangladesh and Vietnam, ’

WEAKNESS AND THREATS

Increase in the power costs, higher transaction costs, high cost of labour and general increase in input costs, are
. &l hindering progress. far which the indusiry has (o concentrate on cost reduction exercises and improvement in
efficiency. Shortage of skilled labour, decling in cotton acreage every year, cotton crop loss due to unfavorabla
monsoon is indeed a major area of concern for textile industries, Cotton acraage in top grower India is likely 1o
drop by the most in aver 3 decade this year, as plunging prices and fears of a drought prompt farmers (o swilch
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lo cultivating pulses in the hope for better retums. As per Cotlon Association of India, since other crops are giving
better retumns. there is a drop of around 7 per cent in cotton acreage and thal will be the steepest fall since 2002-
03.

Uncertainties in global textile market regarding yarn prices, fluctuation in foreign currencies, disturbed countries
crisis etc. leads to affect cotton procurement, producl pricing, decline demands & customer base. Additional tax
lavies in diferent forms also affect profitability.

Your Company is persistently working. hard 1o face such challenges by cost reduction, process improvements,
minimizing wastage and improving productivity & quality in proximity to mitigate the growing cost pressure in our
overall oparations. We are.moving ahead swiftly through our resull oriented strategies for future sustainability &
development

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Since the government is keen to provide boosl lo invesiments in different sectors through its ‘Ease of doing
business mission and policies, it is a long lerm initiative which will finally improve the GDP in coming years while
increase in foreign exéhange. It is expected that this shall driva investment and further growth in the textile
industry as well, -

The fundamental strength of your Company flows from its strong production base ol wide range of yarns from
naturat fibres like coiton, silk and synthetic /man-made fibres like polyester, viscose & nylon eic.. The Company
has a robust framework for providing quality products at competitive prices by ensuring proper limeline.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

A strong internal control is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framework of internal
control in afl areas of its operations, including suitable monitoring procedures, competent and qualified personnel.
The Interna! Audit department also assesses Lhe opportunities {or improvement in business processes, sysiems
and controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the Company. In addition to slatuiory audit,
the financial controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Intemal Auditors, who report their
findings to the Audit Committea of the Board. The Audit Commillee actively reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness: of internal control system and suggests furthering strengthening the same, if so required. The
Committee meets to review the progress of the internal audit initiatives, significant audit observations, planning
and implementation of follow up action required. The Company conducts its business with integrily and high
standard of ethical behaviour and in compliance with the applicable Jaws and regulations that govern its business.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES *

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment al workplace and has adopled a Policy on Pravention of
Sexual Harassment at Workplace in lina with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women al Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Management of the Company has also constituted
Internal Complaint Committees at its workplaces to consider and redress the complaints of Sexual Harassment,
During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harasstnent.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Business risks exist {or evary Company having national and international exposure. Your Company also faces
some such risks, the key ones are unfavourable cotton prices, financial & liquidity & unexpecled changes in
regulatory framework. To ensure long-term success, it is therefore essential that risks be effectively identified,
analyzed and then mitigated by means of appropriate control measures.

We have a comprehensive risk management system/palicy in place, which enables us to assess, mitigale and to
monitor the different risks exposed to.the industry in which the Company operates and to take the appropriate
action, whare ever required, -
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T"HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

The Company has health and workplace safety programmes in place and has established policies and
procedures aimed at ensuring compliance with applicable laws/legisliative requirements. The Company believes

~-that the health and safety of the workers and the persons rasiding in the vicinily of its plants is fundamental to the
business. Commitment to the identification and elimination or controi of the workplace hazards for protection of
all is utmost importance.,

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The permanent employee sirength of Company as on 31" March 2016 was Twenty Seven, The Company
recognizes the importance and contribution of its human resourcas for its growth and development and is
committed lo the development of its people. The Company has been adopting methods and practices for Human
Resources development. With utmost respect to human values, the Company continues to develop its human
resources, through appropriate trainings, workshops, motivationfleadership lechniques and employee welfare
activities at regular intervals,

s

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Board's Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's
objeclives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results may difler materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that
could influence the Company's operafions include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affacling
selling prices of finished goods, input availabifity and yam prices in the domestic and overseas markets, changes
in government regulations, tax laws and economic deveiopments.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sdi- Sdi/-
Place;: Chandigarh {Anurag Gupta) (Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 Executive Director Managing Diractor

DIN-00192888 DIN-0(192985
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REPORT

To The Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company’)},
which comprise the Balance Shéet as at 31st March, 2016, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Companys Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect 10 the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting. principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
conlrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and prasentation of (he financial statements that give a trve and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil.

4. Wae have taken into dccount the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required- to be included in the audil report unders the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of lhe
Acl, Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of tha financial statements, whether due o fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the audilor considers internal financial control relevant to' the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumslances. An audit also includes evalualing the appropriatenass of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as gvaluating (ha overall presentation of the financial statements.

Wae betieve that the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial slalements.

Opinion

8.

9.

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given o us, the aloresaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in confarrnity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the slate of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2018, and ils profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that dale,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatc').ry Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2018 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks

+ of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and

explanations given lo us, we gwe in the "Annexure A", a staterment on the matters specified in the paragraph

3 and 4 of the Order. .

10.. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: ‘

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books; .

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profil and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards speciﬁad under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

{e) On the basis of the written representa'tions received from the directors as on 318t March, 2016 taken on
record by tha Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a d:ractor in terms of Saction 164 (2) of the Act;

{N With respect lo the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effecliveness of such controts, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B> and
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(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in qur opinign and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.. The Company has disclosed the impacl of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2016 on its
financial position in is financial statements. '

i. The Company did not have any Iong-larml contracts including derivative contracts for which thare
wers any material foreseeable losses. ' ;

ii. There wera no amounts which wera required to be (ransferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. ’

for JAIN & ANIL SO0D . N
Chartered Accountants )
Firm's Registration No. 010505N 3

{RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Place: Hisar Pariner
Date : 30.05.2016 Membership No. 088447




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED . - %

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexuré referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independen! Auditor's Report of even date 1o the members of Hisar
Spinning Mills Limited on the financial slatements as of and lor the year ended 31st March, 2016, we reporl

that:.

{i}

{i}

(i)

{v)

(v}
(vi)

{vil)

e —————— — "

1

{a) The Company has mainlained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative delails and
situation of fixed assets.

{(b) The Company has a program for the physical verification of fixed assets at pericdic intervals. In cur
opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its fixed assels. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the tiile deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. ’

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management al reasonable intervals. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Seclion 189 of the Act. Thus,
paragraph 3{iii) (a}, (b} and (c} of the Order are not applicable.

According Lo the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the records of

"the Company, lhe Company has not advanced any loans or made any investments or given any guarantees

or provided any security during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. -

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost racords under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act, for any of the products of the Company.

{a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added iax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, to the approprate
authorities, though there has been slight delay in few cases. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts outstanding as payable in respect of such statutory
dues were in arrears as on 31st March, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(6) There are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or dLﬁy of customs or duty of excise which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. There are following dues of value added tax as on
.31st March, 2016 which have not been deposited on account of disputs:

Name 6( the|Nature  of|Amount (?) |Period to which the amount[Forum where dispute is
Statute ihe Dues relates pending
Haryana  Value|Value 417315/-|Assassment Year 2012-|Before the Joint Excise and|
Added Tax Act,|added tax 2013 Taxation Commissioner
2003 . A {Appeals), Haryana
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{vii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment ol lpans or borrowing to a financial institution or bank. The
Company does not have any loans or borrowing from Government during the year, The Company also does
not have any cuistanding debeniures during the year.

(ix} The moneys raised during the year by way of term loans from financial inslitution have been applied for tha
purposes for which those were raised. The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of
initial public offer or further public-offer (including debt instrumenits),

{x) According o tha information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noliced or reported during the year,

{xi) The Company has paid managerial remuneration to Mr. Anurag Gupta during the year under audil and the
same has been paid as approved by the members under provisions of Companies Acl, 1956 for a period of
five years with effect from 1st February, 2012 in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th
September, 2012,

{xii} tn.our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xit) of the Qrder is nol applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance wilth Sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial stalements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fuily
or partly converlible debenturas during the year under raview.

{(xv} According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Seclion 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 010505N

(RAJESH FUMAR JAIN)
Place: Hisar Partner

Date : 30.05.2016 _ ’ - Membarship No. 088447
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1

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Hisar Spinn:n§ Mills Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March, 2816 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that dale. :

~ Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2

The Company's managemenl is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI"). These responsibilities
< include the design, implemenla{ion and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
. operating eﬂeclwely for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

- company's policies, the safeguarding of its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and erors, the

" accuracy and compleleness of the accounling records, and the timely preparation of refisble financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
" reporting based on our audit. We conducled our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
- Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, fo the
extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial
* Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
: Guidance Nole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
.feasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

- Qur. audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ade'quéEy of the intema
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal
{inancial controls over financial reporung included obtaining an understanding of. mtemal financial controls
over financial reportmg assessing the Tisk: that a material weakness exists, and tesung and evalualing the
design and opera!:ng effectiveness of mtemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

- depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mtsstatement of the
financial slatements whether due to fraud or error. ‘,: :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and.appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonaﬂle

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounling- principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporing includes those policies and procedures that (1) perain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable delail, accurately and fairly reflect the Wransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company, {(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial stalements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituras of the company are being made only in accordanca with.
authorisations of management and directors of the company, and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely deleclion of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assels that could have a material effect on the financial slatements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to efror or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over
financial reposting lo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condilions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate, ‘

Opinlon

8

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal inancial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
Jist March, 2016, based on the internat control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for JAIN & ANIL SO0OD
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 010505N

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)

Place: Hisar Partner
Date : 30.05.2016 Membership No, 088447

!
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falance Sheet as at 315t March 2016

in¥T

Particulars - . Note No. As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ot : . : . -
Sharsholders’ funds

(a) Share capitat ~ . . ; 43850000 43850000

3 .
{b} Resarves and surplus 4 27185355 _" 71035355 __ 21232518 65082518
-~ Non-currentliabilities - ' L

(a) Long-tarrm bomrowings 5 457990979 ) 17295661
Current liabilitles
(a) Shon-term bomowings 6 - : 5884557
{b) Trade payablas 7 _4127509 3890487
(¢} Other current liabllities 8 23088293 < 10562455
{d) Short-tesm provisions 9 236534 27452338 - 20317499 -
Total 144287670 102635678
ASSETS _]
Non-current assets - - i
{a) Fixed assets 10

(i) Tangible assets . 69785199 - 29458242

(il) Capital work-in-progreas 5904313 3824017
(b) Deferred tax assets {net) . 11 2218058 3235187
{c) Long-term loans and advances 12 ¢ 3008329 . 7132244
{d) Other non-current aasets 13 3337538 B4251433 2844974 48454884
Current assats : .
(a) Inventories 14 ‘368017722 34743714
(b} Trade receivables 15 . 13655273 6311182
{c} Cash and cash equivalents 18 8534326 A 13068917
{d) Short-term loans and advances 17. 870959 . 377949 )
(@) Other curment assets 18 . 2057957 60038237 1701252 58201014
Total . . . - 144287670 - 10&695678

Significant accounting policies . 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. '
As per our attachad report of even date
for JAIN & ANIL SOQD .
Chartered Accountants ' for and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 010505N B :

-

Place: Hisar (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) *. (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (TRILOKI NATH GOEL).

" Date : 30.05.2016 o Partner Managing Director . . Director
. Membership No, 088447 ’ DIN: 00192885 DIN: 00193103
{ANURAG GUPTA) (TANU SHARMA) {SHARAD GOEL} -
Exacutive Director  Company Secratary.  Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00192888

57




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

TGO s @_w*j&@ e

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

——
s atwfrie - g TRe Ak

The accompanying notes form an intagral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even dale

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 010505N

{RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Partner
Membership No., 088447

Ptace: Hisar
Date : 30.05.2016 Managing Director

DIN: 00192985

(ANURAG GUPTA)  (TANU SHARMA)
Executive Direclor
DIN: 00192888

él}:-;in-,t.f. i
Particulars Note No. For the year &Zitl Forthe.year 1o r
ended 31.03.2016 ended 31.03.2015:613
REVENUE . 1500 sl (B)
Revenue from operations 19 239274264 o'onue b 0238216185T;
Other income 20 653753 , 1262977
CBianH InLL-nol
Total revenue 239928017 “ ' 7 T 240479182°
' SRR O
EXPENSES . o
Cost of materials consumed 21 141839890 157134214
(-} Increase/ decreass in inventories v 22 657379 554779
Employee benelits expense 23 4090864 3075293
Finance costs 24 4682728 2831478
Depreciation 25 23062992 13453257
Other expensas 28 58867820 53118461
Total expenses 233001673 230175482
Profit before exceptional items and tax 6926344 10303680
Exceptional items 27 1759768 -
Profit before tax .+ 8686112 10303680
Less: tax expense: -
{1) Current tax 1714144 4606132
{2) Deferrad tax 1019131 2733275 _-2189213 2416919
Profit for the period 5952837 7886761
Earnings per equity share (EPS): 28
(Nominal value of equity share - 2 10/-)
Basic EPS (1) 1.59 2.1
Diluted EPS () 1.59 21
Significant accounting policies 2

for and on behalf of the Board

{GOPAL KRIS.HAN GUPTA) (TRILOKI NATH GOEL)

Director
DIN: 00193103

{SHARAD GOEL)
Company Secraetary  Chief Financial Officer
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LI

eCasn:Flow;s:atemant'for.the.year-.ended'sist‘m}mh:zo1s S
’ ot T 4 e T oNL niT
iParticulars 'Forthe - Forthe
.yearended  year ended
_ . 3 03.2018 '31.03.2015
A (Cash flow.from:operating activities : o,
‘Profit before extraordinary items and tax . 18686112 10303680
rAdjustments for:
"Depreciation . 23062992 '1345325?
Profit on disposal.of tangible fixed assets -1759768 -
--Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ (-) gain . oL 4414 22313 :
“Provision for mark:to market loss on desivative instruments, . s =3:uan B4ITI4 0 N
. Interest income 600725 -1029326
«Interest expense -4590606 2504313
YOperating profit before -extraordinary .items .and ‘working capital 34039176 25209606
r.changes e -
N o ‘ -
*"Movement in\working capital: - = * - N
{Decrease/ (-)increase in trade receivables 7220328 1 "gTR0%6 =T
“Decreasel (-} increase in inventories _ coo T-_ 12740087 3778334 7
“Decrease/ (-) increase in loans and advances and other assets 2153648 .- .:3869078 " ", ,o1
Increase/ {-) decrease in trade, payables and othes hab:ﬁt:es 425?682 o - —223242‘ . '
L 'S f'M‘ .-
.Cash-generation from: operation befnre extraordmary item 31947167 ’“25888655
= Direct taxes paid - . - -1493940~ -4.5‘59?15”-- :;'“2*
“Net cash flow from/ {-) used: In operahng acﬁvlﬂu 31 1’ - 30448227-~: ‘213089‘40 3h
N N RIS ey el o
- ,.: TeTt gt _;,_i. ae ’i" “{::"'.i:‘.iv} 'a_*;_‘:‘"?'? -~ ?*}_I‘:
B. “Cash flow from investing activities, T N B BRI
- ¥ ::"1 *':! n&'}-“‘- = N
..z} Purchase of tangible fixed assets (:ncludmg ap:tal work- m-progress) -66620364; -4758?19:
-.Proceeds from disposal.of fixed assets 2914400°
-(+) "Increase/ decrease in non-curent bank batances - term deposats 600107 - -
.pledged wuth banks lowards margin against bank guarantees
"(-) Increase/ decrease in current term deposits with-bank having less than 12900000  -12800000
-12 months maturity at the year end (term deposit receipt ‘pledged with
bank towards margin money against Iener of credit)
lnteresl received : 870533 414094
Net cash flow from/ (-) used in investing activities -50535538 17244625
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PINNING MILLS LIMITED -

Standard (AS) - 3' Cash Flow Statement.

"~ As per our attached report of

-t -

for JAIN & ANIL SO0OD

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 010505N

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)

HISAR $ - T
_ v in?
Particulars - - L T = For the For the
' ) ’ yearended year ended
e oo . e 31.03.2016  31.03.2015
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from /(-) repayment of long-term borrowings 36655147 -7024097
Proceeds from /(-} repayment of short-term borrowings -5864557 1442435
Interest paid -4335870 -2539270
Net cash flow from/ {-} used in financing activities 26454720 8120932
Net increase/ {-) decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6367409 4056617
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 166917 4223534
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year . _. . 6534326 166917
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current/ cash credit accounts 4557554 32447
. Cheques, drafts on hand or under clearing 1704270 -
Cash on hand 272502 . 134470
6534326 166917

Note: The cash flow stalement has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Accounting

even date

for and on behalf of lhe Board

Place: Hisar (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (TRILOKI NATH GOEL)
Date : 30.05.2016 - 'Partner - Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088447 ~ DIN: 00192985 DIN: 00193103
(ANURAG GUPTA)  (TANU SHARMA) {SHARAD GOEL)
' _ Executive Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
- DIN: 00192888 .
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1Nom.to-.ﬁnanc'ialstatemenis:for.fhe;.yearqendqd?Sist;March.'st :

. tCo:_'porata:icientiﬂcatloﬁ:number'qnd:namre:ofiqp_erations _ ) _
{Corporate identification number of .the company is:L17112HR1992PL.C031621 .and .the .company is
«engaged in.the'business of manufacturing and sale of colton blended yamn. *

2. 'Significant accounting policles
{{a) 1Basis of preparation
‘The ‘financial statemsents have been iprepared under .the 'historical -cost ‘convention on accrual -
basis of accounting and in ‘accordance with accounting principles generally:accepted in'lndia:and
comply with the accounting standards ‘notified under ‘the relevant ‘provisions .of :the .Companies
Act, 2013. -

All assets and liabilities have.been classified:as current or non-cument ‘as iperithe .company’s.

‘normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the:Schedule'lli to the Companies Act, 2013.

.Based on the nature of products.and the lime :between the acquiisition ‘of assets for processing

-and their realisation in cash or.cash equivalents, 'the' company has ascertained.its operating-cycle
a3 twelve months for.the purpose of current - non current classification of assets-and liabilities.

({b} .Use of estimates .
- The ipreparation of -financial ‘statements iin ‘conformity .with ‘generally accepted :accounting
2 principles ‘requires ‘management ito‘make estimates ;and .assumptions ithat .affect sthe reported
. amounts.of assets.and liabilities and disclosure of .contingent liabilities at:the date.of the financial
statements and the results:of .operations during the reporting year.end. Although these.estimates
are based upon management's 'best -knowledge of cument events 'and .actions, actual results
could differ from these:estimales. .
({c) ;Revenue:recognition i ) ‘ .
»-Revenue ‘from sale .of manufactured goods and sale :of waste is recognised .on transferof :all
- significant risks.and rewards of. ownership {o:the buyer which coincides with.dispatch:of .goods:to
“.the customers. ‘Revenus.from sale of imanufactured-goods and-sale of waste is:disclosed net-of

a retumns, if any. . . ;

{Export sales are accounted on the ‘basis of date of Bil of lading. Export'bengfits are.accountad
‘for.on.accrualbasis. ' ‘ ’

((d) \Employee:benefits ‘ g - : ' S

{#) Shortterm empicyee benefits < . - L]
!Shor_i-.tsr_rn'emp!o‘yee:benaﬂtsrara'reoognisad:as-an!expense:at.the.undiscmmtad':_amqwulmgm@'-f{“;

PR o

statement o rof an loss of the yearin whichithe related service s renderdd. . - < ieisd] ZAe

LN el LI aa T e P PO

"~ The:contribution:to;provident fund:and:pension fund.are considered as defined contr}buhonplans o

-and-are :charged 1to ithe ‘statement of ;profit and loss .as they fal idue, j_l_:_ie{as'é‘d’;qﬁ'@ie‘fa;ﬁbl}hf ol o
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(iii) Compensated absences . .
Based on the leave rules of the company, employees are not permitted to accurnulate leave. Any

unavailed privileged leave to the extent encashable is paid to the employees and charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the year.

(iv) Defined benefit plan - gratuity

Liability for gratuity is provided through a palicy taken from Life Insurance Corporation of India
{LIC) by a trust formed for the purpose. The net present value of obligation towards gratuity to
employees is actuarially determined as at the balance sheet date based on the Projected Unit
Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss for the year. '

(e} Fixed assets :

y Fixed assets have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price including duties and taxes {(other than those subsequently
recoverable by the company from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. When assets are sold or discarded
their cost and ‘accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain ar loss
resulting from their disposal is included in the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outslanding at the balance sheel date are
disclosed as ‘Capital advances' under the note of ‘Long-term loans and advances' and the cost of
fixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed under '‘Capital work-
in-progress’. '

{f) Depreciation -

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on written down value method over the
estimated useful life of assets in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013. '

Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/ discardment of assets, is calculated pro rata from
the date of such addition or up o the date of such sale/ discardment, as the case may be.

(g) tmpairment of assets -
At each balance sheet dale an assessment is made whether any indication exists that an asset
has been impaired. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss i.e., the amount by which the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount is provided in the books of account.

{h} Inventories

Inventories (other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and net realisable
- value. However, raw materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are
not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost in respect of various items of inventory is
computed as under: k. sa . CublaaiTe An'g LanbteadytoTT ol

R b e, A
N Pt 1

i -rimcase of raw material. stores and spares, diesel'and packing material at first-in-first-out (FIFO}
cost method plus direct expenses. RS B . :
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- in case of work-in-progress at raw material cost {determined on FIFO cost method) plus
appropriate portion of conversion cost and other overheads mcurred depending upon the stage of
oomplelmn

- in case of finished goods at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus
conversion cost, packing cosl and other overheads incumed to bring the goods up to their
present condition and location.

Saleable waste has been valued at estimated net realisable value,

(i) Effects of changae in foreign exchange rates
{i) Foreign Currency transactions are initialty recorded in the reporting cumrency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and foceign
currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii} Al each balance sheet date foreign cumrency monetaty items are reported us:ng the closing
rate.

L (i) Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items' at rates different from
¥ those al which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
. statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in.which they arise.

- {iv) In case of Forward Exchange Contracts for firn commitments or highty probable forecast
: transactions, the pricing period of which extends beyond the balance sheet date, keeping in view
* the principle of prudence as enunciated in AS - 1, “Disclosure of Accounting Policies®, suitable
= provision is made for likely Joss, if any in respect of such outstanding derivative contracts at the
. batance sheet date by marking them to market.

(i} Government grants
Govemment grants related to revenue have been deducted from related expense which they are
- intended to compensate. Govemment grants of the nature of promolefs oonmbl.mon have been
; credited to Capital Reserve.

(k) Bomrowing costs
. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of quahfymg assets are
,,capntal:sed as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily
* substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised
-as an expense in the statement of profit and loss..

- ~{y~Tax expenu
- Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Provision for current tax is made in accordance
«with the provisions of Income:tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from timing differences
betweean taxable income and accounting income that onginate in one period and are capable of
** réversal in one or more subsequent periods is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are
Jenacted or substantively enacted as on_the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
1 recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
+ will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. However, deferred tax
- assets arising on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation are recognised
only when there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxabile
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during specified period. In
the year in which-the MAT credit becomes efigible to be recognised as an asset in accordance
with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Nota issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitement. The company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is
no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal Income Tax during the
specific period.

(m) Segment reporting
The company operates only in one business segment viz., ‘yam'’ which is the reportable segment
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS} - 17 'Segment Reporting'
notified under the Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

{n} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there
is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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. Asa T kst
3032016 . 31032015

3. Share capical

—Authorised-
. Equity shares of T 10/- each

' Preference shares of ¥ 10/- each
Total

lssued . _
Equity shares of T 10~ each

[ 5% Redeemable non cumutative preference shares of T 10V- each
Total

Subscribed and fully paid
l - Equity shares of T 10/- each

Total

Equity shares of T 10V- each:

Nomber of Amoont Number of  Amount

5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 104 each

8000000 80000000 8000000 80000000
2000000 20000000 2000000 20000000

~100000000 100000000

3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000

650000 6500000 ~ 650000 6500000
e

__ 43850000 - 43850000

' Y e

3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000

650000 6500000 650000 6500000

_Ass0 43850000

i mmhﬁm&mnﬁnwdmmmaMWuﬂammaﬁmﬁngm:

« Particulars

Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares

 Number of shares and amount at the beginning
Add : Shares issued '
- Number of shares and amount at the end

1

3735000 37350000 3735000 - 37350000

3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000

5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 105 each:

Particulars

dem.-dm
shares shares

«~ Number of shares and amount at the beginning
Add ; Shares issued

Number of shares and amount at the end

- 650000 6500000 650000 6500000

650000 6500000 650000 6500000
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As at As at

' 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares: :
Equity shares: The company has one class of equity share having par value of T 10/- par share. Every member holding
equity shares and entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy shall have voting rights which shall be in the same
proportion as the capital paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid up or partly paid up) held by him bears to
the total paid up equity capital of the company. - .

Preference shares: The company has issued 5% redeemable non cumulative preference shares having par value of 2
10/- per share. The preference sharehalders enjoy preferential rights in respecl of payment of dividend and repayment
of capital over the equity shareholders. The preference shares shall not entitle the holders thereof ta any voting rights,
axcapt in respect of resolutions which directly affect the rights attached to the praferences shares, and in the event the
company does not pay any dividend on the said preference shares no voling rights-shall accrue to such holders on
account of non-payment of dividend. The said preference shares will be redeemable at par at the discretion of the
board either in lump sum or in four quarterly instalments commencing from 01.01.2024 and ending on 31.12.2024 but
before the expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment (27.07.2005) subject to the provisions of the Companies Acl,
1956 and other applicable legistalions as may be in force from lime to time and the provisions of the_articles of
association of the company.

Shares in the company held by each shareholder holdingfora than 5 percent shares:

Name of the shareholder . Number of %held MNumber of % held
shares shares

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each: ] - - .

5% Redeemable non cumula,  eference shares of T 10/ each:

Gopal Krishan Gupta 118000 18.15 110000 16.92

M.L. Kansal 70000 10.77 70000 10.77

Nikhit Goel 302000 465.46 132000 20.31

Bindu Goel - - 92000 14,15

Anurag Gupta 55000 8.46 55000 B.46

Anuj Gupta 55000 8.46 55000 8.45
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in?
- As ay As at
31.03.2018 - 31.03.201%
4. Reserves and surplus : .
Capital resarves ' .
As at the commencement of the year 3342000 3342000
Add: receipt during the year . - 3342000 - T 3342000

Surplus Le. balance in statement of profit and loss
As al the commencement of the year - 17890518 10003757 -
Add: Profit for the year as per the staternent of profit and loss 5952837 23843355 __ 7886781 17890518

Total 27185355 21232518

5. Long-term borrowings

L

»

+

.
.

Secured (7}

Term loan from bank - . -

Term loans from financial institution T 45751808 16800000

Other Jong-term bormowings from banks 48170 45799979 685661 17295661
Total . 45799979 17295661

(*) Nature of security and guarantse by directors or others:
Term loan from bank: .
Term loan from bank i.e., Punjab National Bank with balance outstanding ‘of T nil as on 313t March 2016 (previous year

X 381938/-) {inchuding amount of principal due with in next 12 months from the batance sheet date amounting to ¥ nil

{previous year T.361938/) shown under sub-head 'Curent maturities of long-term bormowings' in note no, 8 'Other
cument lizbilities'] is sacured by: ' ‘

{a) hypothecation of building constructed/ 10 be constructed, plant and machinery instalied up to 31.03.2011, ather
assets and equipments purchased with the bank loan along with fumniture & fixture,

(b) first charge ranking paripassu with Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDEI) by way of equilable
morigage of all tha immovable properties i.e., land & building thereon of the company situated at VPO Dabra, Distt,
Hissar, admeasuring about 34 kanal 14 marlas owned by tha company,

The above securities are also hekl as security for loan repayable on demand (cash credit) from Punjab National Bank
(refer note no. 6 *Short-term bomowings'), .

Term loan from bank ., Punjab National Bank is further covarad by personal guarantee of the directors of the
company namely Sh, Gopal Krishan Gupla, Sh. Anurag Gupta and Sh. T.N, Goe! and by Sh, M.L. Kansgl, promoter of

. the company.

Term loans from fnancial institution: .
Term loans from financial institution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India {SIDBI}, with sanctioned amount

._of T 80000000/ and balance outstanding of T 59722809/ as on 31st March 2018 (previous year T 21930000/-)
Tincluding amount of principal due with in next 12 months from the balance sheet date amounting to T 33971000/

{previous year T 5330000/-} shown under sub-head ‘Cumment maturities of long-term borrowings” in nota no. 8 'Othar
current liabilities’], togather with interest, costs, expenses, penal interest and all other monies dues and payable by ihe

. COMpany ara secured by: -

. . R
AP acuri

: a
(i) first charge by way ol hypothecation in favour of SIDBI of the planl, machinery, equipment, tools, spares,
accessories and all ather assets which have been or proposed 1o be actuired under tha prok schemas,
- 67
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_Collateral ) c .
(i) Extension of first charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBI of all the borower's movables, inctuding the
movables, plant, machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, office equipments, computers, fumitures and

- fixtures, located at 9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana and acquired after 01.04.2011.

{ii) Extension of first pari passu charge with Punjab National ‘Bank by “;ay of morigage of al immovable properties of
the company, both present and future situated at Sth KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana
admeasuring 34 kanals and 14 martas including factory shed, building and structure therson.

Torm loans from financial institution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) with sanctioned amount of
7 80000000/- are further coverad by irrevocable and unconditional personal guaraniee of the directors of lhe company
namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta and Sh. T.N. Goel. Out of thésa term loans of ¥ 80000000/ from
SIDBI, term loan with sanctioned amount of ¥ 31000000/ is also covered by imevocable and unconditional personal
guarantee of Sh. M.L. Kansal and term loan with sanctioned amount of 7 45000000/- is coverad by irrevocable and
unconditionsl personal guarantee of Smi. Sapna Kansal, director of the company.

Other long-term borrowings from banks: . _
Othar long-term borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation (marked with Registering Authority, Motor
Vehicles) of vehicies acquired out of proceeds of the said borrowings from banks. :

Terms of repayment:
Term loan from bank: .

(i) Term loan of 2 11688000/ is repayable in 28 quartery instaliments of 2 418000/- each with effect from March 2009.
Rate of interest as at the previous year end 11.75%# p.a.

In?®
Yoarwise repayment schedule 2015-2018
Term foans from bank 361938

Term loans from financial institution: o i

(i) Term foan of ¥ 29300000/- is repayable in 68 monthly instaliments commencing 18 months after the date of first
disbursement i.e., 02.08.2011. The first 18 installiments of T 300000/~ each, next 18 instaliments of T 400000/~ each,
next 18 instaliments of T 510000/ each, next 11 installments of T 625000/~ each and tha tast final instaliment of ¥
B845000/-. Rate of interest 11.95% p.a. as at year end. (previous year 12.25% pap '

(i)} Term loan of T 1700000/ is repayable in 66 monthly instaliments commencing 18 months after the date of first
disbursement i.e., 02.08.2011. The first 18 installments of T 15000/- each, next 18 installments of ¥ 25000/- each, next
18 instaliments of 2 30000¢- each, next 11 instaliments of T 35000/- each and the last final instaliment of T 55000/-.
Rate of intarest 11.95% p.a. as at year end. (previous year 12.25% p.a. ¥

(iii) Term loan of 2 49000000/- (disbursed T 43122809/- up 1o 315t March 2016) is repayable in 72 monthty installments
comprising of first 71 monthly instaliments of ¥ 681000/ and last instaliment of T 649000/ ~ommencing after a
moratorium of 12 months from the date of first disbursement of the foan during May 2015. Rate of interest 10.70%# p.a.
as at year end. :

‘ . in?
Yaarwise 2015.2016 2016-2017 2017-2018  2018-2019 20153.202¢ 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023
repayment .

schedule

Term loans 5330000 13971000 15612000 10852000 8172000 8172000 8172000 649000
from : ’

financial . L.

institution '

# Rate of interest is withoul considering interest subsidy under TUF scheme.
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Othar long-term borrowings from banks:

(i) Other long-tem borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to ¥ 1500000/- is repayable in 36 equated monthly
i instaliments (EMIs) of ¥ 48585/- {including interest) starting from 1st May 2014, Last mstalrm.-nl due on 1st April 2017,
Rate of interest 10.26% p.a. as at year end. {previous year 10.26% p.a.) L o

(if) Other long-term boirowing from HOFC Bank Limited amounting to ¥ B00000/- is repayable in 36 equated rnonthly
installments (EMIs) of T 25600/- (including interest) starting from 5th Augusl 2013. Last instalment due on 5th Juty
-+ 2016. Rate of interest 9.81% p.a. as al ysar end. (previous year 9.81% p.a.)

in?
Yearwise repayment schedule 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018
Other long term borrowings from banks 775724 647491 48170
- i~ ¢
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! In¥
As 3t - As at .
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
6. Short-term borrowings

Secured ()
Loan repayable on demand from bank {cash credit) - 5864557
Total “ . T e L 506ASST
("*) Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others:

Loan repayable on demand from bank {cash credit) is secured by hypothecation of stocks of various raw materials viz
manufacturing material, raw materals including .excisable raw materiats, stocks in process, semi finished goods,
finished goods {including bought out finished goods) and hypothecation of entire receivablas/ book debls.

The said facility from Punjab National Bank is furiher secured by first charge on machinery of the company installed up

10 31.03.2011 and first charge ranking paripassu with Small industies Development Bank of India (SIDBI) by way of _ .
squitable morigage of all the immovable proparties i.e., land and building constructed thereon of the company situated

al VPQ Dabra, Distl, I-IJssar. admeasuring about 34 kanal and 14 marlas owned by the company.

Loan cepayable on demand from bank (cash credit) is also covered by personal guarantee of the directors of the
company namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta, $h. Triloki Nath Goel and Smi. Sapna Kansal,

7. Trade payablaes

Miceo, senall and medium enterprises {“‘ - . -
Others 4127509 ' 3890487

, Total . 4127509 3890487
{***) The company'has not received the required iniomalion from its suppliers regarding their siatus under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006. Hence disclosures, it any, relating lo amounts unpaid as at the
year end together with interest paid/ payable as required under the said Acl have not been made.

8. Other current llabitlties

Current matusities of long-term borrowings 14618491 6467662
Interes! accrued but not due on bormowings 400226 174009
Qther payables
- Advances from customers - 56133
- Creditors against capital goods 3076400 163950
- Accrued employee benefits expense 411377 265886
Rkt Giatutory dues ;884603 ..+ 327109
- Other liabilities 3887166 8069576 3085008 3920784

Total oo o 23088293 - 10562455

9. Short-term provisions

Provision for current income tax {net of prepaid taxes) 189945 - -
Provision for employee benefits B 46589 -

Total 236534 -
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. . Int®
As at As at
. 1.03.2016 31.03.2015
LN Deferred tax asasts (net) .
Defarred tax asseots .
Depreciation on fixed asseis . 21968165 3235187
Othar timing differances ) . 1980 . -
Deferred tax assets {net) “ 2216058 3235187
12. Long-term loans and sdvances

{unsecured, considered §ood)

. Capital advances . 559970 5050817
Security deposits : 2157514 2022589
Prapaid expenses . 250845 59038
Total . 3008329 7132244

‘ 13. Other non-current assets
{unsecured, considarad good}
Non-current bank balances - lerm deposits {pledged with banks 2457607 1857500
towards margin agains bank guaranlees) —
Intarest accrued on term deposits with bank z 879929 783338

" Advance to gratuity trust - 204138

Totat o ' 3337536 - 2844974
14. inventories -
{Refer note no. 2 (h) for mode of valuation) . :
Raw material g ' _ 15730869 14284718
Work-in-progress 5586058 2638952
Finished goods 10345006 13825332
Stores and spares, diesal and packing material . 4266768 3781532
[including in transit - T Nil {pravious yaar - T 158850/-)] T
Saleable waste: 78023 213180
Total » ) smTr22 4743714
15. Trade recaivablos
(unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a periog axceeding six months from the date thay . 8429
became due (or payment :
Outstanding for 8 period nol exceeding six months from the date 13855273 6301753
they became due for payment
Total 13655273 6311182
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2957957

. in?¥
Asg ut As at
. 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
18. Cash and cash aquivalents e :
Balances with banks -
- in currenl/ cash credil accounts 4557554 32447
- in term deposit accounts (hek! as margin money against letter of crodit) - 12900000
- a--Cheques, drafts on hand of under clearing 1704270 -
Cash on hand 272502 134470
Total 6534326 13066917
Of the above. the balances that meet the definition of cash and 6534326 166917
cash equivalents as per Accounting Standard {AS) - 3 'Cash Flow
Statement’ is:
17. Shogt-urm tcans and advances
(unsecured, consiiered good)
Advance income tax (net of provision for income tax) 144141 187919
Advances lo suppliers of goods and services 444900 .
Taxes and duties recoverablefrefundable 3957 13498
Other loans and advances 33720 5033
Prepaid expenses 244241 161499
Total 870959 AT7o49
18. Other cumment assets
{unsecured, considerad good)
Interest subsidy receivable . . 2128488 1103588
Inlerest accrued on deposits with banks and security deposits 165006 531495
Export benefits receivable - 61656
Excise duty refundable under EPCG scheme 664375 -
Tangible fixed assets held for sale - 4513

1701252
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in¥
For the ' For the
year anded ' year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
19. Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Manufactured goods 237091442 236858303
. 237091442 236858303
QOther operating revenues .
Sale of waste 1910535 2245728
Sale of scrap 10338 50500
Export benefits 261949 61656
' | 2982822 2357882
Total 239274264 239216185
Details of sale of manufactured goods under broad heads -
Cotton blended yam 237091442 236858303
20. Other income
Interest income 600725 1029326
Nel gain on foreign currency iransactions and {ranslation - 54703
Insurance claim received - 170505
Miscellaneous income 53028 _ 8443
Total 653753 - 1262977
)
21. Cost of materfals consumed
Cost of raw materials consumed
Opening stock of raw materials 14284718 17761617
Add: purchase of raw maleriats 144015581 153829907
158300299 171591524
Less:
Sale of raw materials 729540 172592
Closing stock of raw materials 15730859 ‘ 14284718
Cost of materials consumed - Total 141839890 157134214
Details of raw material consumed under broad heads ‘
Texdile waste/ Cotton waste 103354828 107322944
Polyester staple fiber 38432687 49811270
Others 52315 -
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In?
For the For the
year ended year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
22. {-} Increasel decreass in inventories
Closing inventories _ L
~-Finished goods. . 10346006 13825332
Saleable waste 78023 21180
Work-in-progress 5596056 26368952
16020085 16677464
Opening Inventories !
Finished goods 13825332 15312876
Saleabla waste 213180 591678
Work-in-progress 2638952 1337689
16677484 17242243
{-) Intrease/ decreass in inventories - Total 6573719 564779
Details of inventories of finished goods under broad heads
Closing inventories
Cotton blended yam 10346006 13825332
Opening inventories
Cotton blended yam . 13825332 15312875
. . s
Detalis of inventories of work-in-progress under broad heads )
Closing inventories _ ' -
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress 5596056 2638952
Opening inventories ,
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress 2638952 1337689
23. Employee benefits expense v
Salaries, wages and bonus 3497727 2717553
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 573636 35(:_‘»245-
Staff wellare expenses 19501 1495
Total ' 4090864 3075293
24. Finance costs )
Interest sxpense 4480496 " 2504313,
Interest paid on shorfall in payment of advance income lax 110110 -
Other bomowing costs g2122 327165
Total 4682728 T 2831478
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int
For the For the
. yearended year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
25. Depreciation .
Depreciation on {angible assets (refer note no. 10) 23062992 13453257
Total 23062992 13453257
26. Other expenses g
Consumption of stores and spare parts 7780343 7677168
Packing material consumed - 2623110 2179328
Diesel consumed 2075420 4845544
Power expenses 39374790 33508880
Contract labour charges and expenses 1506826 - 1266563
Repair and maintenance .
- Machinery 1149976 968760
- Building 303028 -

. Insurance charges 388364 373667
Fees and subscripion 378547 . 251954
Auditors remuneration

- Audit fees 114500 112360
- Tax audit fees 22900 22472
- Certification fees 34350 33708
Legal and professional charges 66863 213910
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and transiation™ caputal goods . 405758 -
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 6781 -
Mark to market loss on derivative instruments " 64373 -
Freight and cartage outward 745287 68453
Clearing and {orwarding charges (export) 21211 352218
Rebate and discount 1367 1725
Misoey.gnews expenses 1412466 1239750
Totat 58667820 53116461
27. Exceptional items
Profil? {-) loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 1759768 -
Total 1759763
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A ' ' . . il n?¥
—— Forthe - For the

year ended year ended

31.03.2018 31.03.2015

28. Earnings per equity share (EPS) -
The calculation of EPS as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been made in"accordance with Awountmg
Standard (AS}-20 ‘Eaming Per Share' notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2006,

A statemenl on calculalion ol EPS is as under:

Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 5952837 . 7886761

Totsl (a) : 5952837 7886761

Number of equity shares outstanding during the year (nos.} ° 3735000 T 3735000

{Nominal value of equity share - T 10/-) a

Totat {b} 3735000 3 3735000
LS i ) —_—r

Baskc EPS (T} (a/b) : ) 1.59 21

Diluted EPS (Z) {a/b} 1.59 21

Note: There are no potential equity shares

29. Contingent Habilities and commitments
{to the extent nat provided for) “
{i) Counter guarantees issuad o Punjab National Bank in respect 37io7 1857500
of the guamntees issued by the said bank in favour of varous
govemmenl authorities.

{ii} Disputed demand in respect of Value Added Tax - - 397773 -

{i} Performance bords executed in favour of The President of - 61494598 27673306
-India against exports obligations for purchase of capltal goods .

under Export Promation Capilal Goods (EPCG) schame

(i} Estimated amount of unexecuted capital contracts (net of 197211 38045756
advances) .
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ﬂ .
30. Employee benefits ‘ :
Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 '‘Employee benefits’ are as under:
(a) General description of plan: Defined gratuity benefit obligation (funded)
(b) Method of valuation of gratuity: Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method.
) in?
[Particuiars 1 20152015 | 2014-2015 |
{c} Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of defined bensfit obligation:
1, |Present valus of obligation as al the beginning of the period 5864878 437889
2. [Curranl service cost 130006} 95271
.- 3. |Interest cost : . 46950 35031
.+ | 4. |Net actuarial (-} gain/ loss on obligations 179644 34958|
5. {Benefits paid -16768 -16269
6. |Present value of obligation as at the end of the pericd 926710 SE6878
: v ;
{d) Falir value of plan assets:
1. |Fair value of plan sssets at lhe beginning of the period 791014 740830
2. |Expected return on plan assals 66845 66653
3. |Contributions 34841 -
4. |Beanefits paid -16768 -16269
5. [Actuarial gain/ (-) loss on plan assets 4389 -
6. [Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 880121 791014
=
{e) Amount recognised in the balance sheet: .
1. |Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 926710 586878
2. |Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 880121 791014
3. |Amounlt recognised in the balance sheat - assel/ (-) liability -46858% 204136
() Expenses recognised during the period:
1. |Current service cost 130006 95271
2. |Interest cost 48950 35031
3. |Expecled return on plan assets -668845 -66653
4. |Net actuarial (-) gain/ loss recognised in the period 175255 349568
. 5. |Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 285366 98605
_(g) Actuarial {-) gain/ loss on planned assets :
1, JActual return on plan assats 71234 66653
2. |Expectad return on plan assels 65845 56653
3. |Actuarial {(-) gain/ loss on planned assets -4389} 0
(h) Actuarial {-Ldgainl loss recognised
1. |Net actuarial {-) gair/ loss on obligations 179644 34956
2. |Actuarial (-) gain/ loss on planned asseats -4389 0
3. |Total actuarial (-) gain/ loss 175255 34956
4. |Actuarial (-) gain/ logs recognised 175255 . 34956
. (i) Actuarial assumptions:
1. |Discount rate (per annumy) 8.00% 8.00%
2. |Salary growth rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
3. |Mortality IALM 2006-08|IALM 2006-
Ultimate 08 Ultimate
4. [Expected rate of relurn (per annum) 8.00% 9.00%
5, |withdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%
6. |Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Note: The above information is certified by the actuary and relied upon by statulory auditors.
~ 78 :
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED %

31. Related parties disclosures
{a} The name of the transachng related party and descnptlon of the relationship belween the pames

[

Kay management personngl:

Mr. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Dlrector
Mr. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director

Mr- Sharad'Goel? Chief Financial Officer
‘Ms. Tanu Sharma, Company Secretary

Enterprises over which key management personnel or relative of such pers%nnel is able to
exercise significant inﬁuence
Usha Yams Limited

{b) Related party transactions:
) in%

Description of the nature of]
transactions

2015-2016
Enterprises over

2014-2015
Enterprises over

‘ sr

No. Key Key

management
personnel

which there is
significant

management
personnel

which there is
significant
influence

| , influence

. |Remuneration
Mr. Anurag Gupla
Mr. Sharad Goel

Ms. Tanu Shama
2. |Purchases (including duties| .

" |and taxes)

Usha Yarns Limited

3. [Sales (including duties and

taxes)

Usha Yarns Limited .

360000 : 360000 -
503226 - - -
125598 : 86742 :

93115 . 1724457

46524 - 515198

Remuneration to KMP has been taken from the date from which they became KMP,
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HISAR SPINNING MILLSLIMITED =~ . .« . ' . S@
32 "No amount of dividend has been proposed to be dtstnbuted to equrty and preferenca shareholders for the period.

.33 Tl'nerexsnommsnnenlofassets dunngtheyear o
u. ValueofnwtscalwlaiedonCthas:s L - '
T R {In%)
Particulars s R o ++ Forthe . - Forthe
S epgaee yoaranded .~ year anded
s i L ) 31.03.2016 © 31.03.2015 .
Soresendspara parts . ¢ . . - - - 207626 .
Capitaigoods . R 45215111 ‘ -
Total S S . _dsmnar :
35. Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account: . ) '
. - . ) o .- un ')
Particulars ' . e - -7 Forthe - - For the
: s . TR . ‘year ended | year ended
- ) . . 31032015 ~ 3032015
Commission on sales - T i © - 75666 50921

Total Com . - 75666 50921

- 36. Total vake of allimported raw materials, stores and spares consumed during the financial year and the lotal value of all
. indigenous raw materials and stores and spares: similarly consumed and the percenlage of each to the toltal

consumption:
. , . . . in?
Particulars For the For the
S e levaT year ended - year ended
Lo T _ N032016- .  31.03.2015
L . ’ T Amount | % | Amount { % |
(i) Raw materials . - .
- Imported : - - . - .
- Indigenous . 141838890 100% 157134214 100%
Total. _ _ : 141839890 100% 157134214 100%
(ii} Stores and spares
- imported . y y .
- Indigenous ST . 7780343 100% 7677168 100%

Total . . _ 7780343 100% 7677168 100%

-

-+




. u - I * .
- . ' =
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED '
t 37. Eamings in foreign exchange on account of: , ' s .
R in?
Particutars ' . For the For the
’ : year ended year endad
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Export of goods calculated on F.Q.B. basis: 7519887 2650999
Total - 7519887 2650999
T U3, The previous period figures hiave been regrouped! reciassified, wherever necessary to conform to the cument period
presentation.
Asperouts;tadmdmpondevendate-
for JAIN & ANIL SO00
Chartered Accountants for and on behaif of the Board
Firm Registration No. 010505N .
Place: Hisar {RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA} (TRILOKI'NATH GOEL)
" Date : 30.05.2018 Partner " Managing Director - Director

Membership No. 088447 DIN: 00192985 DIN: 00193103

{ANURAG GUPTA) (TANU SHARMA) (SHARAD GOEL)
Executive Director  Company Secretary  Chief Financial
DIN: 00192888 '
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| if undelivered please return to : . _ __
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
.- Regd. Office & Works : 9th K.M. Stone,
G Hisar-BhiwaniRoad, . I\
" V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125 005 (Haryana) .
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